
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Keith Brady    
 
INVOCATION 
 
READING OF MINUTES 
 

I Minutes from Regular Meeting on September 24, 2019 .......................................................... Tab A 
 
REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSION 

 
I 1 Appointment – Cultural Arts Commission – 3 Year Term 

 
II 4 Appointments – Development Authority – 4 Year Terms 
 
III 1 Appointment – Water and Light Commission – 3 Year Term 
 
IV Parks Commission Annual Report 
 
V Tree Commission Annual Report 
   

REPORTS ON OPERATIONS BY CITY MANAGER 
 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

I Consider Agreement with Corporate Health Partners (CHP) to offer employees a 
comprehensive wellness program for 2020 .............................................................................. Tab B 

 
II Approval to enter into contractual agreement for Courtware Solutions, Inc. to 

provide court software .............................................................................................................. Tab C 
 
III Update of Newnan/Coweta County Jail Agreement adding Sheriff Lenn Wood to 

the agreement........................................................................................................................... Tab D 
 

IV Consideration of an ordinance to authorize imposition of an excise tax on rooms, 
lodgings and accommodations in the amount of 8% for the purposes of 
promoting conventions and tourism by a destination marketing organization ......................... Tab E 

• Ordinance 
 
V Consideration of Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws establishing Explore 

Newnan-Coweta, Inc., for the purposes of promoting conventions and tourism ...................... Tab F 
 

VI Consideration of amendment of an ordinance to provide regulations for the sale 
and possession of alcoholic beverages in certain establishments holding a 
private special event license and in independent living facilities and/or an 
assisted living facility ................................................................................................................ Tab G 

• Ordinance 
 
VII Consider ordinance amendment of Chapter 5 adding a new article for Multi 

Family Rental Housing to promote ongoing investments in upkeep and 
maintenance ............................................................................................................................. Tab H 

• Ordinance 

Newnan City Council Meeting 
OCTOBER 08, 2019 

Newnan City Hall 
Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers  

25 LaGrange Street 
2:30 pm 

  

 



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – October 8, 2019 @ 2:30 P.M. ............................ Page 2 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
I 15 Elm Circle – Owner request for extension ............................................................................ Tab I 

 
II 18 Berry Avenue – Owner update and request for extension ................................................... Tab J 
 
III 33 Hardaway Street – Owner update and request for extension ............................................. Tab K 
 
IV 121 Pinson Street – Owner update and request for extension ................................................ Tab L 
 
V Status Reports – 280 W Washington Street, 180 W Washington Street, 6 Glenn 

Street, 8 Glenn Street and 100 Sprayberry Road ................................................................... Tab M 
 
VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 
 

I White Oak Golden K-Kiwanis Club request to sell pecans on the square for their 
twenty fifth year on Fridays November 8th through November 22nd ......................................... Tab N 

 
II Foundation Christian Church request to use three parking spaces in front of 

Greenville Street Park for their free Ice Cream Truck to participate in the NHS 
Homecoming Pep Rally – Thursday October 10, 2019 beginning at 4 pm .............................. Tab O 

 
III Artists and Makers Pop Up Market is requesting a third event downtown to be 

held on Sunday November 17th from noon to 6 pm, with set up at 10 am and 
breakdown by 7 pm – this request includes additional space and an addition of 
two alpaca for petting and photos – also for both the November 17th and October 
20th Market they would like two turtles from Georgia Reptile Society to be allowed ................ Tab P 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – LEGAL, PERSONNEL AND REAL ESTATE 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



















 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: October 8, 2019 

Agenda Item: Wellness Program through Corporate Health Partners 

Prepared By: Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

 

 
Purpose:   The City is interested in entering into an agreement with Corporate Health Partners 
(CHP) to offer employees a comprehensive wellness program for 2020. 
 
Background: The City wishes to provide employees with a comprehensive wellness program to 
supplement medical insurance. This program engages the workforce all year long, and provides 
employees with the tools to maintain or improve their health and wellbeing. 
 
Funding: General Fund 
 
Recommendation: Enter agreement with CHP 
 
Previous Discussion with Council:  None 
 
Attachments:  
Client Services Agreement 
Exhibit A, Year 1 
Exhibit A, Year 2 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

1 

 

CORPORATE HEALTH PARTNERS  
CLIENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 
This Client Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2020 
by and between Corporate Health Partners, LLC (“CHP”) and the City of Newnan (“Client”). CHP and 
Client may be collectively referred to as “Parties” or individually referred to as a “Party.”  
 
 
1. Services.  
 
 (a) As part the CHP Health Management Program (the “Program”), CHP agrees to provide to 

Client and Client agrees to procure from CHP certain wellness-related services as further described 
in Exhibit A (“CHP Services”) in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

 
 (b) Exhibit A shall describe:  (i) the Services, (ii) the agreed to term (“Initial Service Term”), 

(iii) the eligible employees, spouses, retirees (“Members”), (iv) the recurring (monthly) and non-
recurring (provisioning or other) charges, and (v) such other information as may be necessary to 
reflect the specific CHP Services that the Parties have agreed to under this Agreement.  Client 
acknowledges that CHP may provide the CHP Services through employees, agents, contractors, 
and any other persons or business entities, with which CHP may contract in its sole judgment. 

 
2. Client Responsibilities.  The Client agrees to the following:  

  
(a) The outcome of the CHP Services with respect to its Members is dependent on the level 
of enthusiasm and support which Client’s executive management team demonstrates in connection 
with the CHP Services. 
 
(b) CHP has provided Client with the following examples of positive management support 
which CHP has observed during other client engagements as being critical in ensuring the success 
of the Program within that client’s organization:  

  
(i) The client assumes primary responsibility for promoting the CHP Services, 

enrolling employees, and setting up initial and subsequent screening appointments; 
 
(ii) The client provides appropriate incentives to promote the CHP Services in order 

to maximize participation; 
 
(iii) The client allows its Members to participate in the CHP Services on paid time; 
 
(iv) The client provides CHP with a monthly list of new and terminated employees; 
 
(v) The client makes its facilities available for CHP representatives to use when onsite 

and provides appropriate screening and office space and internet access; 
 
(vi) The client establishes and enforces program compliance guidelines among its 

Members; and 
 
(vii) The client establishes a “Wellness Team” made up of key Members that regularly 

meet with CHP representatives and take an active part in communicating the CHP Services to all 
Members. 

 
(c) Client agrees to take all reasonable actions to support the CHP Services including, without 
limitation, by implementing the foregoing examples of support within its organization.  

 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

 

3. Pricing & Payment Terms.  
 

(a)  Pricing.  As compensation to CHP for providing the Services, Client shall pay CHP the fees 
set forth on Exhibit A.  Unless expressly provided otherwise on Exhibit A, the fees will be payable 
to CHP in accordance with Section 3(b) below.  
 
(b) Payment Terms. 
 
 (i) The annualized fees will be due and payable as detailed on Exhibit A. 
 
 (ii) All incidental charges (as distinguished from the annualized fees) will be invoiced 
by CHP upon the incurrence or assessment thereof. 
 

(iii) Client agrees to reimburse CHP for all reasonable travel costs (hotel, airfare, etc.) 
and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by CHP related to out-of-town trips that are requested and 
pre-approved by the Client. 

 
(iv) Client shall pay all properly invoiced amounts within fifteen (15) days of Client’s 

receipt of such invoice.  All payments hereunder shall be in US dollars and made by check or wire 
transfer.  
 
(c) Late Payments.  CHP may terminate this Agreement immediately in the event any 
delinquent amount due hereunder is not paid by Client within fifteen (15) days of receipt of written 
notice from CHP of such delinquent amount.  Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, 
Client shall immediately pay the outstanding balance for unpaid invoices to date owed CHP under 
this Agreement, notwithstanding any claims or defenses which Client may have against CHP. 

 
(d) New Members.  New hires by Client who are eligible and enrolled members of the health 
plan (and new participating spouses (if any)), will be billed to Client per the prorated table provided 
on Exhibit A.   

 
 (e) Other. At the Client’s discretion, spouses, adult dependents, or non-health plan member 
employees may participate in the Program as Members at price provided on Exhibit A. 
 
(f) Terminated Employees. No credit will be applied for Members which lose their eligibility 
during the Term, including, without limitation, employees that are terminated during the Term. 

  
(g)        Fee Adjustments.  Unless both Parties agree otherwise, the fees referred to in Exhibit A of 
this Agreement shall increase by 3% per year during each year in which this Agreement is in effect, 
and such increase will be effective as of the anniversary date of this Agreement. If there are any 
other changes to Exhibit A, CHP will provide written notice to Client; provided that: 

  
(i)         CHP may only make such adjustments at the end of each contract year 
(i.e., anniversary date) during the Term. 
  

 
(h) Taxes.  Client shall be responsible for all sales, use and excise taxes, and any other similar 
taxes, duties and charges of any kind imposed by any federal, state or local governmental entity 
on any amounts payable by Client hereunder; provided, that, in no event shall Client pay or be 
responsible for any taxes imposed on, or with respect to, CHP's income, revenues, gross receipts, 
personnel or real or personal property or other assets. 

 
4. Term; Termination.  The Initial Service Term of one-year is provided on Exhibit A. Thereafter, this 

Agreement shall continue for consecutive one-year terms (each, an “Extended Service Term” and, 
collectively with the Initial Service Term, the “Term”) unless this Agreement is terminated upon the 
occurrence of any of the following: 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

3 

 

 (a) Either party, in its sole discretion, may terminate this Agreement, at any time without cause, 
by providing at least one hundred twenty (120) days' prior written notice to the other party. 

 
 (b) Either party may terminate this Agreement, effective upon written notice to the other party 

(the "Defaulting Party"), if the Defaulting Party:  
 
  (i) materially breaches this Agreement, and such breach is incapable of cure, or with 

respect to a material breach capable of cure, the Defaulting Party does not cure such breach within 
thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of such breach; or 

 
  (ii) (A) becomes insolvent or admits its inability to pay its debts generally as they become 

due; (B) becomes subject, voluntarily or involuntarily, to any proceeding under any domestic or 
foreign bankruptcy or insolvency law, which is not fully stayed within seven (7) business days or is 
not dismissed or vacated within forty-five (45) days after filing; (C) is dissolved or liquidated or takes 
any corporate action for such purpose; (D) makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; 
or (E) has a receiver, trustee, custodian or similar agent appointed by order of any court of 
competent jurisdiction to take charge of or sell any material portion of its property or business. 

 
 (c) CHP shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately as provided for in Section 

3(c) if such delinquent payment is not made within 15 days of demand therefore.  
 
 (d) Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, each party shall (i) return to the other 

party all documents and tangible materials (and any copies) containing, reflecting, incorporating or 
based on the other party's Confidential Information, (ii) permanently erase all of the other party's 
Confidential Information from its computer systems and (iii) certify in writing to the other party that 
it has complied with the requirements of this clause.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, CHP may 
retain one archival copy of all documents and other information related to the CHP Services 
provided under this Agreement (including, without limitation, those documents, records, files and 
information which include Confidential Information of Client); provided that CHP may only retain 
and use such information for archival or audit purposes or in defense of any claim made in 
connection with this Agreement. 

 
5. Non-Exclusive Services.  For the benefit of clarity, CHP retains the right to perform the same or 

similar type of services for third parties during the Term of this Agreement.  
 
6. Confidentiality of Business Information.   
 
 (a)  Employees. Client and CHP acknowledge and agree that in the course of providing the 

Services to the Members, CHP will obtain certain confidential and sensitive information relating to 
the Members and their activities, habits, health history, etc. (the “Member Information”). Client 
acknowledges and agrees that Client shall have no right to receive the Member Information and 
that the Member Information shall not be distributed by CHP to any person or entity other than the 
respective Member or his or her guardian and his or her health care provider upon the written 
direction of the Member or his or her guardian.   

 
 (b) Confidential Information.  “Confidential Information" means any information that is 

treated as confidential by a party, including, without limitation, trade secrets, technology, 
information pertaining to business operations and strategies, and information pertaining to 
customers, pricing, and marketing. Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) is 
already known to the Receiving Party without restriction on use or disclosure prior to receipt of such 
information from the Disclosing Party; (b) is or becomes generally known by the public other than 
by breach of this Agreement by, or other wrongful act of, the Receiving Party; (c) is developed by 
the Receiving Party independently of, and without reference to, any Confidential Information of the 
Disclosing Party; or (d) is received by the Receiving Party from a third party who is not under any 
obligation to the Disclosing Party to maintain the confidentiality of such information.  For the benefit 
of clarity, Confidential Information of Client shall include raw data collected from any third party 



 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

 

payor and/or Client and/or or its employees, including claims data, absenteeism, sick time, 
productivity, worker’s compensation and attrition rate. 

 
 As used in this Agreement, “Disclosing Party" means a party that discloses Confidential 

Information under this Agreement and "Receiving Party" means a party that receives or acquires 
Confidential Information directly or indirectly under this Agreement. 

 
(c) Obligations to Protect.  The Receiving Party agrees: 
 

(i)  not to disclose or otherwise make available Confidential Information of the 
Disclosing Party to any third party without the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party; provided, 
however, that the Receiving Party may disclose the Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party 
to its officers, employees, consultants and legal advisors who have a "need to know", who have 
been apprised of this restriction and who are themselves bound by nondisclosure obligations at 
least as restrictive as those set forth in this Section 6. 
 

(ii) to use the Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party only for the purposes of 
performing its obligations under the Agreement; and 

 
(iii) to promptly notify the Disclosing Party in the event it becomes aware of any loss 

or disclosure of any of the Confidential Information of Disclosing Party. 
 

(d) Compelled Disclosure.  If the Receiving Party becomes legally compelled to disclose any 
Confidential Information, the Receiving Party shall provide: 
 

(i) prompt written notice of such requirement so that the Disclosing Party may seek, 
at its sole cost and expense, a protective order or other remedy; and  

 
(b) reasonable assistance, at the Disclosing Party's sole cost and expense, in 

opposing such disclosure or seeking a protective order or other limitations on disclosure.  
 

If, after providing such notice and assistance as required herein, the Receiving Party 
remains required by law to disclose any Confidential Information, the Receiving Party shall disclose 
no more than that portion of the Confidential Information which, on the advice of the Receiving 
Party's legal counsel, the Receiving Party is legally required to disclose and, upon the Disclosing 
Party's request, shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain assurances from the applicable 
court or agency that such Confidential Information will be afforded confidential treatment. 

 
7. Confidentiality of Individually Identifiable Health Information.   
 

(a) Definition.  For purposes of this Agreement “Individually Identifiable Health 
Information” has the same meaning as set forth in 42 U.S.C. §1320d, which is any information, 
including demographic information, collected from an individual that has been received or created 
by Client and relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an 
individual, the provision of health care to an individual, or the past, present or future payment for 
the provision of health care to an individual and identifies the individual or with respect to which 
there is a reasonable basis to believe that the information can be used to identify the individual. 

(b) Restrictions on Use and Disclosure.  In addition, to the confidentiality provisions set forth 
in Section 6 of this Agreement, the Parties desire to comply with the Standards for Privacy of 
Individually Identifiable Health Information promulgated by the Department of Health and Human 
Services at 45 CFR parts 160 and 164, subparts A and E (“Privacy Rule”) under the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”). 

 
(i) The Parties shall not and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees, 

contractors, and/or agents do not use or further use or disclose Protected Health 
Information (as defined in the Privacy Rule) in any manner that would constitute a 
violation of the Privacy Rule other than as permitted or required by Law; and,  



 

 

 

 

 

 

5 

 

 
(ii) The Parties agree to implement all necessary safeguards to prevent the use or 

disclosure of the Protected Health Information (as defined in the Privacy Rule) and 
to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any potential business pattern, practice or effect 
that is known to the Parties to be in violation of the requirements of the Privacy Rule. 

 
(iii) The parties acknowledge and agree to cooperate and modify the terms of this 

Agreement for any changes to HIPAA or any related statutes and regulations which 
require modifications herein. 

 
8. Non-solicitation.   Client agrees that during the Term of this agreement and for a period of two (2) 

years thereafter, Client shall not without the express written consent of CHP (which consent may 
be withheld for any or no reason), (a) directly or indirectly, on its own behalf of on behalf of any 
other person or entity, encourage any person who is employed by, or consults with, CHP to 
terminate his or her employment or engagement, as the case may be  or (b) directly or indirectly, 
solicit, take away, hire, employ or endeavor to employ or engage, as an employee, independent 
contractor, consultant, or otherwise, any person who performed any wellness-related services on 
behalf of CHP within the previous two years. 

 
9. Limitation of Liability.  CHP shall not be liable, responsible or accountable to Client for any losses, 

damages, or injuries (whether direct, indirect, consequential or otherwise) or governmental 
assessments or penalties incurred by Client or resulting from or alleged to be resulting from any 
acts or omissions pertaining to CHP Services, except for acts or omissions constituting fraud, willful 
misconduct, or gross negligence by CHP.  Client acknowledges that federal laws and regulations, 
including the relevant provisions of HIPAA and the Affordable Care Act, regulate outcomes-based 
wellness programs and prohibit employer health plans from discriminating with respect to eligibility, 
benefits or premiums or contributions based on “health factors.” Client has made its own 
determination that its plan is non-discriminatory and complies with all applicable laws and 
regulations, including the relevant provisions of HIPAA and the Affordable Care Act, and CHP has 
made no representation to Client regarding the compliance of Client’s plan with such laws and 
regulations. In the event a claim or assessment is made against Client regarding its plan’s 
compliance with the non-discriminatory requirements, the liability for such claim or assessment 
rests with Client and CHP shall have no liability for such claim or assessment. 

 
10. Independent Contractor.  It is specifically understood and agreed by Client and CHP that CHP is 

not, by virtue of this Agreement, a servant, employee, joint venture, partner or agent of Client.  CHP 
is and shall remain an independent contractor for purposes of providing the CHP Services under 
this Agreement. CHP is only under the control of Client in that Client may approve the results of 
CHP’s work and terminate its association with CHP as provided in this Agreement, but Client shall 
not control the means by which CHP conducts its business.  Neither party shall have the power or 
authority to bind the other party. 

 
11. Notices.  Any notice, designation, consent or approval required or permitted hereunder shall be 

made in writing and delivered personally or mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
addressed to the parties as follows: 

 
   
 

CHP:   Corporate Health Partners 
     2105 Barrett Park Dr., Suite 105 

Kennesaw, GA 30144 
     Attention: John O’Brian, CFO  
 
 

Client:   ___________________________ 
 
___________________________ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

6 

 

 
___________________________ 
 
___________________________ 

 
All notices or other communications hereunder shall not be binding on either party hereto unless in 
writing and delivered to the other party hereto as set forth above.  Notices shall be deemed duly 
delivered upon hand delivery, receipt of facsimile transmission thereof, or receipt of express or 
overnight delivery thereof at the addresses specified above or three (3) days after deposit thereof 
in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered mail.  Any party may change its 
address for notice by delivery of written notice thereof in the manner provided above. 

 
12. Miscellaneous.    
 
 (a) Proprietary Rights. Client agrees that names, marks and information of CHP and its 

subcontractors are proprietary to CHP and shall not be used by Client or its owners or 
employees or otherwise disclosed in any way to third parties, without the prior written 
consent of CHP first having been obtained.  Any new product developments, forms or 
improvements of products and services of CHP or its subcontractors during the Term of 
this Agreement shall be the property of CHP and shall be deemed part of CHP names, 
marks and information. 

 
 (b) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding among the parties 

hereto and supersedes any prior written or oral agreement between them respecting 
matters addressed herein.  This Agreement shall not be effective until accepted in writing 
by authorized representatives of both CHP and Client.   

 
(c) Amendments.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by an instrument 

in writing signed by duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto. 
 
 (d) Waiver, Modification, Etc.  No waiver by either party to require the performance by the 

other party of any of the terms of this Agreement shall in any way affect such party’s right 
to enforce such terms, nor any such waiver on any one occasion be deemed a waiver of 
any other term hereof, or any breach hereof.  No right under this Agreement may be waived 
and no modification or amendment to this Agreement may be made except by written 
agreement executed by the party to be charged. 

 
(e) Assignment; Change in Ownership. This Agreement shall not be assigned, 

transferred or pledged, by operation of or otherwise, by Client, and Client may not delegate 
any of its duties hereunder to another entity not controlled by Client, in each case without 
the express written consent of CHP. Any attempt by Client to assign, transfer or pledge, or 
make any other disposition of this Agreement or any of its rights, interests or benefits 
without CHP’s consent shall be null and void (including, without limitation, any assignment 
or transfer or deemed assignment or transfer by merger, consolidation, change of control, 
sale of assets, assignment by operation of law or otherwise). This Agreement shall inure 
to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors 
and permitted assigns. If there shall be a material change in ownership of Client, Client 
shall, within fifteen (15) days of such change, notify CHP in writing. CHP shall have the 
right in its sole discretion to terminate this Agreement in the event of such change in 
ownership by providing Client with thirty (30) days’ written notice. 
 

 (f) Governing Law; Injunctive Relief.  This Agreement and any dispute, controversy or claim 
arising in connection with the construction, operation or enforcement of the provisions of 
this Agreement or the application or validity thereof (collectively, a “Dispute”) will be 
governed by and in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Georgia without 
reference to its conflicts of law provisions. The foregoing notwithstanding, it shall not be a 
breach of this Section 13(f) for either party to seek injunctive relief in any court of competent 



 

 

 

 

 

 

7 

 

jurisdiction.  Each party agrees that a court of competent jurisdiction may immediately 
enjoin any breach of this Agreement upon request of the non-breaching party; provided 
that seeking or obtaining any such injunctive relief shall in no way limit such party from also 
seeking to avail itself of all other rights and remedies which it may have in law or in equity. 
 

(g) Severability.  In the event any portion of this Agreement is deemed to be contrary to the 
law, the remaining portions hereof shall continue to be valid and binding on all parties, 
unless to do so would materially alter the rights or obligations of the parties. 
 

(h) Headings. The headings used herein are for convenience only and do not limit the contents 
of this Agreement. 
 

(i) Survival. Accrued and unpaid payment obligations, this Section 13, and Sections 3(c) and 
4 through 12 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 

(j) Force Majeure.  CHP shall not be responsible for any delay or other failure to perform due 
to unforeseen circumstances or to causes beyond its reasonable control, including but not 
limited to acts of God, war, riot, terrorism, embargoes, acts of civil or military authorities, 
fire, floods, accidents, strikes, or shortages of transportation, facilities, or inability to obtain 
necessary utilities, labor, equipment or materials through usual and regular resources at 
usual and regular prices. 
 

(k) Cost of Collection.  All costs of collection (including attorneys’ fees and expenses) incurred 
by CHP in the enforcement of the provisions of this Agreement shall be paid by the Client.   

 
 
 
 

[Signature page follows] 
 
 
  



 

 

 

 

 

 

8 

 

 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the date 
first above written. 
           
      Client:       
 
      By:  ____________________________________ 
 
      Name: __________________________________ 
 
      Title: ___________________________________ 
       
 
       
      Corporate Health Partners, LLC   
   
        
      By: _____________________________________ 
       
       John O’Brian, CFO 
 
 
 



                     
 

1 
 

Exhibit A to the Client Services Agreement 

Prima Program:  Year #1 of Two (2) Year Agreement 
 

 

Client Signature:         Date:         
 

 

CHP Signature:         Date:       

Client Name:  City of Newnan 

Service Term:  From: January 1, 2020 To:  December 31, 2020      

Participant/Locations Count: 

Location:    Newnan, GA  Eligible Employees:   270 

Total Eligible Employees: 270 

Pricing & Payment Terms: 

 

 

To the extent the client chooses to engage new employees during the year, they will be charged the following pro-rated percentage of the PEPY:

100%

2nd Quarter of the Program 75%

3rd Quarter of the Program 50%

Not eligible

1st Quarter of the Program

4th Quarter of the Program



                     
 

2 
 

Services Included: 

 Participant Web Portal – Used for collection and storage of individual participant data, completion of the Wellness 

Assessment/HRA, scheduling of health screening, appointment reminders, reporting of aggregate information, etc. 

 Review & Planning Session – CHP Team meets with Client to familiarize themselves with company culture, 

determine best locations, dates, and times for screenings and results coaching, discuss communication of the 

program to employees (kick-off meetings), schedule additional meetings with department heads if necessary, discuss 

time-line and other aspects of the program (healthy breaks, wellness committee, etc.) 

 Online Wellness Assessment/Health Risk Assessment - A census of client employees is imported into our web 

portal and assigned a unique Member ID to complete and access their Wellness Assessment/HRA 

 Biometric Screening – CHP Screening Team collects body measurements (height, weight, waist circumference, % 

body fat, and blood pressure) and blood draw (Total Cholesterol, HDL, LDL, Triglycerides, and fasting glucose or 

A1C).  CHP staff will confirm that all paperwork and the Wellness Assessment/HRA have been completed and 

schedule their follow up appointment with the CHP Health Coach to review their results. There is generally no more 

than one onsite health screening event per 50 employees. 

 Individual Risk Assessment Report – A comprehensive report of the participant’s overall health will be available for 

review on the web portal within five business days of the screening. 

 Monthly Progress Report – provided by the CHP Program Manager, this report provides the client with updates on 

key initiatives, past accomplishments, calendar of events, coaching metrics, participant success stories, etc. 

 Aggregate Management Report – After completion of the screening process, a comprehensive Health 

Management Aggregate Report and an Executive Summary will be presented to the client.  This report will contain 

valuable information including the number of employees who are in a chronic disease state or at risk for future 

chronic disease. 

 Incentive Management – The CHP Program Manager along with the internal CHP support team will track and 

report on participant compliance and provide Client with timely and accurate information for related payroll 

adjustments or account contributions. 

 Cohort Report – Beginning with the second program year (following the second screening) and every year 

thereafter, CHP will prepare and present a comprehensive Cohort Report that will provide a comparison of risk levels 

and risk factors for those employees that participated in each of the screenings for each of the program years. 

 30 minute one-on-one Results Coaching Session with CHP Health Coach – Participants will be scheduled post-

screening for a session with a CHP Health Coach to review in detail and answer any questions they may have 

regarding their health risk report. Participants will also work out health goals with action plans and discuss how to 

overcome obstacles. 

 Ongoing 15 minute one-on-one Follow-Up Coaching Sessions with CHP Health Coach – In Follow Up Coaching 

Sessions, the CHP Health Coach reviews progress, addresses barriers, and revises the individual’s plan and goals.  The 

frequency of coaching sessions is based on the risk level of each participant. While we can modify frequency to the 

needs of the Client, we recommend the following: 

High Risk:  Monthly 

Moderate Risk:  Bi-Monthly 

Low Risk:  Annually 

 Culture Building – The CHP Program Manager will provide consultation, activities, and a road map for building a 

supportive culture in the workplace for the wellness program. This will include aspects such as creating a wellness 

team, conducting challenges (gamification) and education sessions (Healthy Breaks and/or Lunch & Learns), 

establishing a communication plan, consultation on incentive plans and recognition, and other culture-building 

activities. 

 Weekly Meal Plan – A simple, nutritious weekly dinner meal plan suitable for the whole family and developed by a 

registered dietitian to make healthy eating easy.  Includes links to 5 healthy recipes with suggested side items and a 

grocery list. 

 Health Newsletter – Monthly Electronic Newsletter with hand-picked articles and features designed to help 

individuals live a healthy and active life. 



                     
 

1 
 

Exhibit A to the Client Services Agreement 

Prima Program:  Year #2 of Two (2) Year Agreement 
 

 

Client Signature:         Date:         

 

 

CHP Signature:         Date:       
 

Client Name:  City of Newnan 
 

Service Term:  From: January 1, 2021 To:  December 31, 2021      
 

Participant/Locations Count: 
 

Location:    Newnan, GA  Eligible Employees:   270 
 

Total Eligible Employees: 270 
 

Pricing & Payment Terms: 

 

 

To the extent the client chooses to engage new employees during the year, they will be charged the following pro-rated percentage of the PEPY:

100%

2nd Quarter of the Program 75%

3rd Quarter of the Program 50%

Not eligible

1st Quarter of the Program

4th Quarter of the Program



                     
 

2 
 

Services Included: 

 Participant Web Portal – Used for collection and storage of individual participant data, completion of the Wellness 

Assessment/HRA, scheduling of health screening, appointment reminders, reporting of aggregate information, etc. 

 Review & Planning Session – CHP Team meets with Client to familiarize themselves with company culture, 

determine best locations, dates, and times for screenings and results coaching, discuss communication of the 

program to employees (kick-off meetings), schedule additional meetings with department heads if necessary, discuss 

time-line and other aspects of the program (healthy breaks, wellness committee, etc.) 

 Online Wellness Assessment/Health Risk Assessment - A census of client employees is imported into our web 

portal and assigned a unique Member ID to complete and access their Wellness Assessment/HRA 

 Biometric Screening – CHP Screening Team collects body measurements (height, weight, waist circumference, % 

body fat, and blood pressure) and blood draw (Total Cholesterol, HDL, LDL, Triglycerides, and fasting glucose or 

A1C).  CHP staff will confirm that all paperwork and the Wellness Assessment/HRA have been completed and 

schedule their follow up appointment with the CHP Health Coach to review their results. There is generally no more 

than one onsite health screening event per 50 employees. 

 Individual Risk Assessment Report – A comprehensive report of the participant’s overall health will be available for 

review on the web portal within five business days of the screening. 

 Monthly Progress Report – provided by the CHP Program Manager, this report provides the client with updates on 

key initiatives, past accomplishments, calendar of events, coaching metrics, participant success stories, etc. 

 Aggregate Management Report – After completion of the screening process, a comprehensive Health 

Management Aggregate Report and an Executive Summary will be presented to the client.  This report will contain 

valuable information including the number of employees who are in a chronic disease state or at risk for future 

chronic disease. 

 Incentive Management – The CHP Program Manager along with the internal CHP support team will track and 

report on participant compliance and provide Client with timely and accurate information for related payroll 

adjustments or account contributions. 

 Cohort Report – Beginning with the second program year (following the second screening) and every year 

thereafter, CHP will prepare and present a comprehensive Cohort Report that will provide a comparison of risk levels 

and risk factors for those employees that participated in each of the screenings for each of the program years. 

 30 minute one-on-one Results Coaching Session with CHP Health Coach – Participants will be scheduled post-

screening for a session with a CHP Health Coach to review in detail and answer any questions they may have 

regarding their health risk report. Participants will also work out health goals with action plans and discuss how to 

overcome obstacles. 

 Ongoing 15 minute one-on-one Follow-Up Coaching Sessions with CHP Health Coach – In Follow Up Coaching 

Sessions, the CHP Health Coach reviews progress, addresses barriers, and revises the individual’s plan and goals.  The 

frequency of coaching sessions is based on the risk level of each participant. While we can modify frequency to the 

needs of the Client, we recommend the following: 

High Risk:  Monthly 

Moderate Risk:  Bi-Monthly 

Low Risk:  Annually 

 Culture Building – The CHP Program Manager will provide consultation, activities, and a road map for building a 

supportive culture in the workplace for the wellness program. This will include aspects such as creating a wellness 

team, conducting challenges (gamification) and education sessions (Healthy Breaks and/or Lunch & Learns), 

establishing a communication plan, consultation on incentive plans and recognition, and other culture-building 

activities. 

 Weekly Meal Plan – A simple, nutritious weekly dinner meal plan suitable for the whole family and developed by a 

registered dietitian to make healthy eating easy.  Includes links to 5 healthy recipes with suggested side items and a 

grocery list. 

 Health Newsletter – Monthly Electronic Newsletter with hand-picked articles and features designed to help 

individuals live a healthy and active life. 



 
City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: October 8, 2019 
 
 
Agenda Item:  Execution of Contract with Courtware Solutions, Inc. 
 
 
Prepared by: Deputy Chief Mark Cooper 
 
Presented by:  Chief D.L. Meadows 
  

 
 
Purpose:   To seek approval to enter a contractual agreement for Courtware Solutions, Inc. to 

provide court software. 
 
 
Background: In June, 2017, Newnan Police Department entered in to contract with ICON, Inc. for court 

software and records management.  During the past two years numerous issues have 
come to surface such as; report generation being wrong, fee collections improperly 
applied to accounts and a computer “glitch” that caused over 2000 licenses to be 
suspended in Coweta County this year.  That issue did not affect Newnan Municipal 
Court, but the same software is currently in place. 

 
 We are asking Mayor & Council to authorize The City of Newnan to enter in to contract 

with Courtware Solutions, Inc. to provide court records management software.  The new 
software is designed for municipal courts, is audit compliant and better suited for the daily 
operations of Newnan Municipal Court. 

 
 The new cost is $3,200.00 for DATA conversion from ICON, Inc. & $8.00 per adjudicated 

citation/case.  This cost is built in to the fine amount accessed by municipal judges.  The 
fee also allows for 10 e-ticket writing stations in the patrol vehicles.  The monthly fees will 
average approx. $5,000.00 per month and ticket revenue will off-set the cost. 

 
    
Funding: 2019 & 2020 Budget – offset by citation revenue 
 
 
Options: A. Approve contract as presented 
   
  B. Deny contract as presented 
 
  C. Provide staff with direction 
 
 
Recommendation:  Option A 
  

 
Previous Discussion with Council:      June, 2017 – Execution of ICON, Inc. contract. 
 



                                                                                      

 

 

Acct: 0011I000006zKaOQAU  Contract: a0Z1I00000IiiwQUAR  

Contract Identification: 

Number: - JB20190805B 

NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 

THE STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF:  Coweta     

        
Courtware Solutions, Inc. (herein "CSI"), 5917 Edenfield Dr. Suite 110, Acworth, Georgia 30101, for good and 

valuable consideration, hereby grants a nonexclusive license to:  
 City of Newnan           

(END USER) 

 1 Joseph-Hannah Blvd | Newnan, GA 30263     
(ADDRESS)                                                                                                                                      (CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE) 

(herein "Licensee") to use certain software programs and related materials (herein "Programs") for the designated 

processing system, subject to the terms and conditions hereof (herein "License"): 
 

Programs shall include executable modules for each software program identified in this Agreement, user's manual 

and related documentation, in machine readable or printed form. 
 

LICENSE QTY UNIT PRICE 

Azure Data Hosting 1 Included 
Visual Court Management System  

(Unlimited User Licenses) 

1 Included 

Visual Court Management System  

NCIC – Access (# User Licenses) 

1 Included 

RMS - Cloud Cop Central  

(Unlimited User Licenses) 

  

 

RMS - Cloud Cop Mobile  

(Unlimited User Licenses) 

10 Included 

 

RMS - Cloud Cop NCIC 

(# User Licenses) 

10 Included 

 

Online Payment Interface  

(Unlimited User Licenses) 

1 Included 

GeoConex  CAD 

(# User Licenses) 

  

BluHorse Jail Management 

(# User Licenses) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have executed this agreement on this the    8     day of    October    2019      to which witness 

our hands and seal of office. 

 

Licensee Courtware 

                        \s1\                              \s2\ 

Signature: Signature:  

Print:            Print:           Jason Bragg 

Title:           City of Newnan, Authorized Official Title:           Sales Executive 

Date:            \d1\ Date:            9/23/19 

 $  8.00   dollars per violation or $     minimum monthly billing, whichever is greater. Price includes the following 

services: Installation, Training, Maintenance, Upgrades and non-customized modifications related to these products. 



 

 

 
1. LICENSE 

Licensee acknowledges that it shall be deemed a licensee of Courtware Solutions, Inc. and that it 

obtains hereby only a non-exclusive license to use the Programs.  Title and all ownership and 

intellectual property rights in the Programs licensed under this license Agreement remains with CSI 

and do not pass to licensee.  The Programs are agreed to be valuable proprietary information and to 

contain trade secrets, which CSI is authorized to license.  Licensee is licensed to use the Program 

solely for the internal purposes of its own business.  Licensee agrees that Licensee will not permit 

the Program to be used either directly or indirectly by licensee's customers or any other person or 

entity through a timesharing service, service bureau arrangement or otherwise.  Licensee may not 

grant sublicense or other rights in the software to others, nor assign or transfer this license to any 

third party.  CSI shall have the right to terminate this license if licensee violates any of its provisions.  

Licensee recognizes and agrees that the Program and all portions, reproductions, modifications and 

improvements thereof provided to licensee hereunder are (i) considered by CSI to be trade secrets; 

(ii) provided to licensee in confidence; and (iii) the exclusive and proprietary information of CSI.  

Title and full ownership rights in the Product and modifications and improvements provided by CSI 

shall not vest in licensee.  Licensee agrees not to remove or destroy any Proprietary or confidential 

legends or makings placed upon or contained within the Program and related materials. 

2. TERMS 

This license shall be in effect from the date of execution of this Agreement and shall remain in effect 

during the term of this agreement.  Upon termination or expiration of this license, all rights and 

obligations shall cease, except the licensee's obligation to maintain the confidentiality of CSI's 

proprietary information. 

3. SECURITY 

Licensee shall take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure that the Programs, or any portion thereof, 

on magnetic tape, disk or memory or in any other form are not made available by the licensee or by 

any of its employees to any organizations, or individuals not licensed by this license Agreement to 

make use thereof, in particular licensee recognizes the proprietary nature of the Programs and agrees 

as follows: 

a. To make no copies or duplicate the Programs or any component thereof by any means for 

any purpose whatsoever except as is required for archival or security storage purposes, 

without prior written consent of CSI. 

b. To reproduce CSI's copyright notice on all materials related to or part of the Programs on 

which CSI displays such copyright notice, including any copies made pursuant to this license 

Agreement. 

c. Licensee shall not copy, reproduce, reverse assemble, reverse compile, compare, modify, 

merge, transfer or distribute the Program or allow any other person to do so in any way or 

manner without the prior written authorization of CSI. 

d.          Any modifications or enhancements to the Program, or any other Program related material 

provided by CSI to the Licensee shall be subject to all conditions and restrictions contained 

in this Agreement. 

4. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

CSI's liability for damages to licensee for any cause whatsoever related to this license, and regardless 

of the form of action, whether in contract or in tort including negligence, shall be limited.  This 

limitation of liability will not apply to claims for patent and copyright Infringement.  

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary in no event shall CSI be liable for any lost profits, 

lost savings, or other special, incidental or consequential damages, or for punitive or exemplary 

damages, even if CSI has been made aware of the possibility of such damages, or for any claim 

against any other party, in connection with the delivery, installation, training, testing, use, 

performance or nonperformance of the Programs, or the act or failure to act of CSI, or arising out of, 

related to or in connection with this Agreement. 

5. TERMINATION 

Upon termination of the license herein granted arising from termination of this license for any reason, 

licensee shall deliver to CSI all magnetic or otherwise materials, together with all portions, 

reproductions, and modifications thereof, furnished by CSI and pertaining to the Programs and shall 

also warrant that all copies thereof have been destroyed or returned to CSI.  Within ten (10) days of 

request by CSI, licensee shall certify in writing to CSI that to the best of licensee's knowledge, the 

original and all copies, in whole or part, or the Programs have been destroyed or returned to CSI. In 

addition, all documentation, listings, notes or other written material pertaining to the Program shall 

be returned to CSI or destroyed.  The right of termination under this Section shall be in addition to 

any other right or remedy either party may have at law or in equity.  CSI shall have the right to 

terminate this Agreement, by giving written notice of such termination to licensee, in the event that 

the licensee (i) fails to pay CSI any sums due and payable hereunder within ten (10) days after their 

due date, (ii) fails to observe any of the licensee's obligations hereunder with respect to proprietary 

information or confidentiality, or (iii) fails to perform or observe any other material term or 

obligation set forth in this Agreement. 

6. NO WARRANTY 

CSI PROVIDES THE PROGRAM "AS IS".  CSI MAKES NO WARRANTIES EITHER EXPRESS 

OR IMPLIED, AS TO ANY MATTER WHATSOEVER, INCLUDING, AND WITHOUT 

LIMITATION, THE CONDITION OF THE PROGRAMS, ITS MERCHANTABILITY, OR ITS 

FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  CSI does not warrant that the function contained 

in the Program will meet the licensee's requirements or that the operation of the Program will be 

uninterrupted or error free. 

7. SPECIAL SERVICES * 

CSI will provide the Client with Such Special services or supplies reasonably requested or approved 

by the Client including, but not limited to, special data entry services, such as conversion, program 

and test data keypunching, data entry, computer runs, or industrial or systems engineering services 

provided that the Client and CSI agree upon the fee therefore, and that the Client approves, in writing, 

payment for such services as special. 

8. EMPLOYMENT 

The Client agrees to retain and employ CSI as an independent Contractor, and CSI agrees to 

Serve the Client upon the terms and conditions hereinafter stated. 

9. SERVICE PERIOD 

This agreement shall commence   October 8, 2019   and shall continue to and including 

_October 7, 2020_.     Client shall have the right and option to continue to receive the services of 

CSI as provided Hereunder for additional periods.  In the event that the Client elects to continue to 

receive services from CSI, this Agreement shall automatically renew for an equal term, unless the 

Client informs CSI in writing ninety (90) days prior to the Agreement Expiration Date.  This 

Agreement applicable thereto shall continue in full force and effect for any additional period 

licensee determines. 

 

10. AGREEMENT TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION 

Not less than three (3) months prior to the Expiration Date, the Client shall notify CSI whether or 

not it desires after the Expiration Date to use the CSI Programs. Upon termination of this Agreement 

in part or in full by action of the terms herein or upon action of the parties, CSI will assist in the 

transferring of the Client's data files retained by CSI pursuant to this Agreement, to another data 

format that the Client desires and communicates provided however, that such formats do not violate 

the proprietary rights of CSI.  Further, costs involved with any such transfer of data shall be borne 

by the Client. 

11. AUTHORIZATION 

The chief executive officer ("Executive') of the Client certifies that all appropriate steps to legally 

enter into this agreement have been taken on behalf of the client, that the matter has been approved 

by the appropriate legislative body and that the terms of this agreement are understood.  Moreover, 

the executive certifies that all laws, rules and regulations as well as any local government rules were 

followed with regard to acceptance of this contract and that this agreement meets all standards for 

governmental contracts. 

12. DUTIES 

During the period or periods Of CSI's retainer hereunder, CSI shall provide data processing services 

to the Client and its various departments.  CSI agrees to provide any necessary training to the Client's 

personnel to the extent at which the personnel are proficient utilizing the CSI software. The Client 

will retain the right to request additional training throughout the life of the contract at times agreeable 

by both parties. The Client acknowledges that during the term of this Agreement certain computer 

programs will be utilized or otherwise made available and that these programs and their use by the 

Client shall be governed this Agreement. 

9.    13. DATA FILES 

The Client's data files and the data contained therein shall be and remain the Clients property and all 

the existing data and data files shall be returned to it by CSI at the Expiration Date or upon earlier 

termination of this Agreement, The Client's data shall not be utilized by CSI for any purpose other 

than that of rendering services to the Client under this Agreement, nor shall the Client's data or any 

part thereof be disclosed, sold, assigned, leased, or otherwise disposed of to third parties by CSI or 

commercially exploited by or on behalf of CSI, its employees or agents. 

14. COMPENSATION AND TERMINATION * 

Commencing  8 October 2019    the Client shall pay to CSI    monthly at its office in Cobb County, 

Georgia, as fees for its services, upgrades, and software support a monthly sum of  $  8.00    per paid 

violation or a minimum monthly amount of $ , whichever is greater.   The annual rate may increase 

by a percentage equal to the increase in the Consumer Price Index, as defined by the US Department 

of Labor. The Client will be responsible for generating an invoice report from the Court Management 

System each month to be included in with the payment sent to CSI office in Cobb County, Georgia. 

If the Client shall default in the payments of CSI provided for herein above or shall fail to perform 

any other material obligation agreed to be performed by client hereunder CSI shall notify the Client 

in writing of the facts constituting default.  If the Client shall not cause such default to be remedied 

within ten (10) days after receipt of such written notice, CSI shall have the right with no further 

written notice to terminate aforementioned support. 

15. Data Sharing 

If used the Client consents and agrees to Courtware's collection and use of all law enforcement and 

court data provided by Client to Courtware, including but not limited to the Shared Data. Although 

the Client acknowledges and agrees that Courtware collects data as a part of its ordinary business 

activity and Courtware may use, distribute, sell and reproduce such data at its sole and absolute 

discretion, Client also specifically consents and agrees to Courtware's providing the Shared Data to 

any and all of those persons and entities participating in Courtware's Data Sharing network. 

Client acknowledges and agrees that Courtware is not responsible for and does not make any 

warranties with respect to the accuracy of any Shared Data. Client agrees to provide accurate 

Shared Data to Courtware, and Client acknowledges that other persons and entities may have 

access to, use, distribute and reproduce any or all of the data collected by Courtware, including but 

not limited to the Shared Data. 

Client agrees that it will not provide Courtware with any data that cannot be lawfully disclosed to 

other persons or entities by Courtware. Client further warrants that all Shared Data provided by 

Client to Courtware is publicly available and is not subject to any intellectual property claims or 

other claims of any other person or entity. 

Client agrees to comply with all state, federal, and local privacy, security and otherwise applicable 

laws, rules and regulations in any way related to the use, transfer or disclosure of any data provided 

by Client to Courtware, including but not limited to the Shared Data. 

 Client agrees that Client will only use the Shared Data in a manner consistent with all applicable 

laws, rules and regulations. 

Client agrees not to sell, provide access to or redistribute in any manner to any person or entity 

who is not at that time employed by Client, whether electronically, in paper format, or otherwise, 

any of the Shared Data that Client receives from Courtware, unless prior written consent is given 

by Courtware. Client agrees to require all employees and any other person or entity that may have 

access to any Shared Data to return all copies, whether electronic, paper or otherwise, of the Shared 

Data back to Client immediately upon ceasing to be an employee of or under contract with Client. 

16. MISCELLANEOUS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of each party.  Other than CSI's 

granting a Uniform Commercial Code security interest to a third-party lender in the accounts 

receivable/contract rights to receive money under this Agreement and many equipment furnished by 

CSI to Client, neither party shall assign its rights or obligations hereunder without the express written 

consent of the non-assigning party.  The Agreement shall embody the entire agreement between the 

parties but may be amended from time to time by the written consent of both parties.  This agreement 

shall be construed under the laws of the State of Georgia, and the invalidity of any portion shall not 

invalidate the remainder of the agreement, but such remainder shall be given full force and effect if 

practicable. 

 

* Definition of a "Paid" Violation; Any violation in which a payment has been received. 

 

* Definition of "Special Services"; Services and or enhancements that are unique to Client, and 

cannot be used by CSI's existing customer base.  

 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:  October 8, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Newnan/Coweta County Jail Agreement 
 
Presented by:  Douglas L. Meadows, Chief of Police 
     

 
Purpose:  Updating of the Jail Agreement from March 30, 2015, due to the retirement of Sheriff 
Mike Yeager and the election of Sheriff Lenn Wood.  
 
 
Background:  Newnan Police Department houses city prisoners with the Coweta County 
Sheriff Department.  This agreement notes the responsibilities of the Sheriff Department 
and Newnan Police Department.  There are no changes in the agreement with the 
exception of Sheriff Wood being added to the agreement.  
  

 
 

Options: 
A. Approve Request  
 
B. Mayor and Council Directed Options 
 

 

Funding:  N/A 
 

 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval. 
 
 
Attachments:  Newnan/Coweta County Jail Agreement  

 

 

 

Previous Discussions with Council: March 30, 2015 
       
 



NEWNAN/COWETA COUNTY JAIL AGREEMENT 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this _______ day of ______________________, 2019, 

between and among COWETA COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, 

hereinafter called “the County”, the CITY OF NEWNAN, Georgia, a municipal corporation of the 

State of Georgia, hereinafter called “the City”, and the SHERIFF OF COWETA COUNTY, 

hereinafter called “the SHERIFF”. 

 

WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the County, for the deletion of persons 

charged with or convicted of violation of the laws and ordinances of the City or held as material 

witnesses or for detention; and 
 

WHEREAS, THE County constructed a jail to serve the people of Coweta County that 

complies with federal standards and state laws and is operated in accordance with such laws, 

standards, policies and procedures; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Sheriff is recognized by law as the jailer of Coweta County, in charge of 

the inmates in said jail; and 
 

WHEREAS, there is sufficient space and facilities to house inmates for the City, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual 

undertakings hereinafter contained, the County, the City and the Sheriff hereby agree as 

follows: 
 

1. 
 

It is the intent of this Agreement that, in pursuance of law enforcement in and for 

Newnan and Coweta County, the County and the Sheriff will accept, book and house inmates 

for the City. 
 

2. 
 

 As used throughout this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meaning 

set forth below: 
 

a. “Book” shall mean to (1) complete NCIC/GCIC fingerprinting and submit to the 

appropriate jurisdiction(s); (2) to complete and submit Offender Based Tracking 

System; and (3) to complete intake booking procedures. 

b. “The County” shall mean Coweta County. 

c. “The City” shall mean the City of Newnan. 

d. The “County Commission” shall mean the Board of Commissioners of Coweta 

County, Georgia. 



e. “County Administrator” shall mean the chief administrative officer of the County 

appointed by the Board of Commissioners. 

f. “City Manager” shall mean the administrative head of the city government, 

appointed by the Newnan City Council. 

g. The “City Council” shall mean the Newnan City Council. 

h. “Jail” shall mean the Coweta County Jail located at 560 Greison Trail, Newnan, 

Georgia. 

i. “Inmate” means a person who is detained in the jail by reason of being charged with 

or convicted of a municipal offense. 

j. “Jail Officer in Charge” means the Sheriff of Coweta County, or the person 

designated by him/her to have supervision of the jail. 

k. “Sheriff” is the jailer of Coweta County, Georgia. 

l. “Inmate Day” means any part of one (1) calendar day beginning at 4:00 a.m. and 

ending at 4:00 a.m. 
 

3. 
 

TERM.  This agreement shall be one (1) year beginning ______________________, 2019.  

However, this Agreement shall automatically renew for additional terms of one (1) year 

as provided hereinafter. 
 

4. 
 

OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY AND SHERIFF.  The County will accept into the Jail such Inmates as 

the City may request and shall give priority in the housing of Inmates over prisoners 

from other counties at the discretion of the Sheriff.  The Sheriff shall accept the 

Inmates into the Jail and provide for the secure custody, care and safekeeping of such 

Inmates in accordance with state and local laws, standards, policies and procedures 

applicable to the operation of the Jail. 
 

5. 
 

OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY.  The City agrees to transport the Inmates to the Jail and release 

them to the custody of the Jail Officer in charge.  The Jail has the right to refuse an 

Inmate for processing who first needs medical attention.  An EMT refusal is not a 

medical refusal.  That individual still must be cleared by a medical doctor.  In addition 

to the usual information obtained and records maintained with respect to Inmates 

detained by Coweta County, the Sheriff shall keep a record of the Inmates committed 

to the Jail, which record shall contain: 

a.   the name of the person committed; 

b. the person’s age, sex and race; 

c. the process under which the person was committed; 

d. the date of commitment to the Jail; 

e. under what order discharged. 
 



 Transportation of Inmates to and from the Jail to Coweta County Superior, State, 

Magistrate and Probate Court shall be performed by the Sheriff’s Office and the expense 

thereof shall be borne by the County.  Transportation to and from City Court and Juvenile Court 

shall be provided by the City.  Removal and return of the same Inmate in a 24-hour period by 

the City shall not constitute a new admission. 
 

6. 
 

SUPERVISION BY THE SHERIFF.  All Inmates delivered to the Jail by the City shall be under the 

direct supervision and control of the Sheriff.  The City agrees that the Sheriff shall 

compute the maximum “good time allowance” for Inmates the same as for non-State 

or Superior Court sentenced Inmates, and that conversion of the computation of the 

Inmates from earned time governed sentences to good-time governed sentences shall 

be made by the Sheriff according to State Law, and the City agrees to be bound by such 

determination. 
 

7. 
 

SHERIFF’S RULES.  All rules and regulations legally and constitutionally adopted and 

promulgated by the Sheriff for the operation of the Jail shall be applicable to Inmates 

and the Sheriff is granted the authority to enforce same, including the right to work 

Inmates within and without the confines of the Jail and allow Inmates to serve as 

trustees. 
 

COST ATTENDANT TO CUSTODY.  The Sheriff shall maintain physical custody of the Inmates and 

the County and the Sheriff shall furnish the food and clothing.  All health care expenses 

including transportation (ambulance), medical or prescription expenses shall be billed 

to the City.  Should a City Inmate housed at the County Jail need outside medical 

attention, it will be the responsibility of the City to transport the Inmate to that facility 

and maintain security on that Inmate until such time the Inmate is medically cleared to 

return to the County Jail.  The decision of when medical care shall be provided shall be 

at the sole discretion of the Sheriff’s representative (medical staff).  The decision of 

where medical care shall be provided (outside of the County Jail) shall be the discretion 

of the City. 
 

9. 
 

TRANSITION FROM CITY INMATE STATUS.  It is understood and agreed that Inmates shall be 

chargeable to the City unless release or booked for violation of State misdemeanor or 

felony charges, or bound over by the Municipal Court to the State or Superior Court of 

Coweta County. 
 

10. 
 



PAYMENTS TO THE CITY.  The City shall impose ten (10) percent as additional penalty in fine 

cases and an additional ten (10) percent when defendant is posting bail or bond as 

required by O.C.G.A. §15-21-90, et seq.  Said funds so collected shall be paid to the 

County for deposit in the County Jail Fund as provided by said code sections. 
 

11. 
 

EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT.  This Agreement will be automatically renewable for successive 

one (1) year terms unless canceled and terminated as specified herein.  Continuation of 

the Agreement shall be on the same terms and conditions set forth in this original 

Agreement. 
 

12. 
 

TERMINATION.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party, with or without cause, at 

any time upon ninety (90) days notice in writing delivered by certified mail to the 

respective Administrator or Manager of the County or of the City. 
 

13. 
 

NOTICES.  All notices provided herein shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been 

given when deposited in the United States mail and sent via certified mail, return 

receipt requested, addressed as follows: 
 

  If to the County: County Administrator 

     Coweta County, Georgia 

     22 East Broad Street 

     Newnan, Georgia 30263 

 

  If to the City:  City Manager 

     City of Newnan 

     P.O. Box 1193 

     Newnan, Georgia 30264 
 

14. 
 

AMENDMENT.  This Agreement cannot be amended, modified, changed, discharged or 

terminated except in writing signed by the parties under proper authority. 
 

15. 
 

FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.  The parties and the undersigned individual officers shall cause to be 

done all things necessary to execute this contract and give it full force and effect. 
 

16. 
 



MEDIATION.  The parties hereto agree that in the event any dispute should arise regarding the 

matters covered by this Agreement which cannot be resolved between the parties, said 

dispute shall be submitted to non-binding mediation.  The mediator shall be selected 

by mutual agreement of the parties at the time any such dispute arises.  In the event 

mediation is not successful, the parties will submit the dispute to the Superior Court of 

Coweta County. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have, by and through their duly authorized officer, hereunto 

set their hands and affixed their seals the day and year first above written. 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:        CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 

 

_____________________________    ______________________________ 

Mayor, Newnan City Council     City Manager  (SEAL) 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Chief, Newnan Police Department 

 

 

 

ATTEST:        COWETA COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

_____________________________    ______________________________ 

Chairman, Coweta County Board of    County Administrator  (SEAL)  
Commissioners 
 
 
____________________________ 
Sheriff, Coweta County, Georgia 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jail Administrator, Coweta County 
 
 
 
____________________________ 

Witness 

  



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: October 8, 2019   
 
Agenda Item:  Hotel-Motel Tax 
 
Prepared by:   Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

 
 
 

Purpose:     Consideration of an ordinance to authorize imposition of an excise tax on rooms, 
lodging, and accommodations in the amount of 8% for the purposes of promoting conventions 
and tourism by a destination marketing organization.    
 
 
Background:    During the 2019 Regular Session of the Georgia General Assembly HB 626 
was approved pursuant to OCGA 48-13-51(b), therefore authorizing the City of Newnan to 
impose an excise tax of 8% on rooms, lodging, and accommodations.  This is commonly 
referred to as “hotel-motel tax’.  In 1999, the City implemented the tax at a rate of 5%.  The 
additional 3% is restricted for the purposes of promoting tourism, convention, and trade.  A 
minimum of ½ of the 3% must be expended via a destination marketing organization (DMO) and 
any remaining funds shall be expended on tourism product development.    
 
A matching HB was also approved for Coweta County during the 2019 General Assembly.  City 
staff has been working very closely with the staff at Coweta County to develop the necessary 
articles to create a joint DMO for the purposes of promoting tourism county-wide.  Such articles 
are being presented in a separate agenda item.    
 
 
Recommendation:  It is the recommendation of staff to adopt the ordinance as presented with 
an effective date of January 1, 2020. 
 
 
Attachments:     Ordinance 
 
           
Previous Discussions with Council:      N/A 



1 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE III EXCISE TAX ON HOTELS/MOTELS OF 

CHAPTER 19, TAXATION OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
NEWNAN, IMPLEMENT TITLE 48, CHAPTER 13, ARTICLE 3, SECTION 51 OF THE 

OFFICIAL CODE OF GEORGIA ANNOTATED, - EXCISE TAX ON ROOMS, LODGINGS, 
AND ACCOMMODATIONS, AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE COLLECTION BY OPERATOR; 
TO PROVIDE FOR ADMINISTRATION; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 

FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing body of City of Newnan, a political subdivision of the 
State of Georgia, is authorized under Title 48, Chapter 13, Article 3, Section 51 of the 
Official Code of Georgia Annotated to levy certain excise taxes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Newnan, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia is 
designated as a “special district” pursuant to Title 48, Chapter 13, Article 50.1 of the 

Official Code of Georgia Annotated for the purpose of implementing an excise tax on 
rooms, lodging and accommodations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 1999, pursuant to Title 48, Chapter 13, Article 51.(a)(4.6)(A) of 
the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, the City of Newnan implemented an excise tax 
on rooms, lodging and accommodations in the amount of five percent (5%); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Newnan and the Newnan Convention Center Authority 
entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement for the Authority to operate the City’s 
Conference Center (“Newnan Centre”) and pledged 2% of the 5% excise tax to 
operations of the Newnan Centre pursuant to the Intergovernmental Agreement’s 
terms; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the State of Georgia enacted 2019 Ga. 
Laws, Page 3660 (Act 89 HB 626 of the 2019 Regular Session of the Georgia General 
Assembly) which authorizes imposition of an excise tax of up to eight percent 8% by 
the City of Newnan pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(b); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Newnan, a political subdivision of 
the State of Georgia, is required under Title 48, Chapter 13, Article 3, Section 51 of the 
Official Code of Georgia Annotated to make available a designated portion of funds so 
collected for the purpose of promoting, attracting, stimulating, and developing 
conventions and tourism by a destination marketing organization in the City of 
Newnan and Coweta County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Newnan, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia is 
authorized under Title 48, Chapter 13, Article 3, Section 51 of the Official Code of 
Georgia Annotated to make available a designated portion of funds so collected for the 
purpose of tourism product development in the City of Newnan and Coweta County, 
with any balance of the funds so designated for the purpose of promoting, attracting, 
stimulating, and development conventions and tourism by a destination marketing 
organization in the City of Newnan and Coweta County. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of City of Newnan, 
Coweta County, Georgia and it is hereby ordained by the Authority of the same that 
upon the effective date of this amendment, Chapter 70, Taxation, Section 70-3 is 
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 



2 
 

Sec. 19-51. – Hotel-Motel excise tax.  
 
Sec. 19-51.1 - Intent, purpose, and authorization to levy excise tax.  
 
(a) The intent of this article is to levy an excise tax on rooms, lodgings, and 

accommodations to provide additional funding for the promotion of tourism, 
conventions, and trade shows in the City of Newnan and Coweta County, Georgia.  

 
(b) The purpose of this article is to enact an excise tax upon the furnishing for value 

to the public of any room or rooms, lodgings or accommodations furnished by any 
person or legal entity licensed by or required to pay business or occupational taxes 
to the City of Newnan for operating within the City a hotel, motel, inn, lodge, 
tourist camp, tourist cabin, rental cabin or any other place in which rooms, 
lodgings, or accommodations are regularly furnished for value.  

 

(c) This excise tax shall be imposed under the authorization of 2019 Ga. Laws, Page 
3660 (Act 89 HB 626 of the 2019 Regular Session of the Georgia General 
Assembly) pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(b).  

 
Sec.19-51.2. - Definitions.  
 

The following terms, for the purposes of this article, shall be defined as follows:  
 

(a) City. The City of Newnan. 

 

(b) City Manager. The duly appointed City Manager or his/her designee. 

 

(c) Destination marketing organization. A private sector nonprofit organization or 

other  private entity which is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(6) 

of the  Internal Revenue Code of 1986 that is supported by the tax under this article, 

government  budget allocations, private membership, or any combination thereof and 

the primary  responsibilities of which are to encourage travelers to visit their 

destinations, encourage meetings and expositions in the area, and provide visitor 

assistance and support as needed.  

 

(d) Due date. The 20th day after the close of monthly period for which tax is to be 

computed.  

 

(e) Estimated Tax Liability. The lodging provider’s prospective tax liability based 

upon the  average monthly tax remittance in the prior fiscal year, as adjusted for 

change in tax rate or substantial change in circumstances due to damage to the hotel. 

 

(f) Finance Director. The duly appointed administrator of finances for the City of 

Newnan,  Georgia. 

 

(g) Folio. The primary documentation produced by a hotel or other Facility that 

demonstrates interaction between the operator and the occupant, and which, at the 

minimum, reflects the name and address given by the occupant, the date(s) of 



3 
 

occupancy, the amount of rent charged for each date together with the amounts of 

applicable excise tax(es), and the method(s) of payment. 

 

(h) Guest room. Accommodations occupied, or intended, arranged, or designated for 

 transient occupancy of not more than 30 continuous days, by one or more 

occupants for the purpose of living quarters or residential use.  

 

(i) Hotel. Includes any hotel, motel, inn, lodge, tourist camp, tourist cabin, 

campground, or any other place in which rooms, lodgings, or accommodations are 

regularly furnished for value and shall apply to the furnishing for value of any room, 

lodging, or  accommodation.  

 

(j) Hotel/motel tax administrator. The individual or office designated by the City 

Manager as the administrative entity to collect and administer the tax provided for in 

this section and to complete required annual reporting of the tax.  

 

(k) Innkeeper/lodging provider/operator. Any person who is subject to taxation 

under this article for the furnishing for value to the public any rooms, lodgings, or 

accommodations or any person operating a hotel in the City of Newnan including, but 

not limited to, the owner or proprietor of such premises, lessee, sublessee, lender in 

possession, licensee or any other such person operating such hotel.  

 

(l) Monthly period. Any calendar month of any year.  

 

(m) Occupancy. The use or possession, or the right to use or possession, of any 

room or  apartment in a hotel or motel, or the right to use or possession of the 

furnishings or to the  services and accommodations accompanying the use and 

possession of the room or  apartment.  

 

(n) Occupant. Any person (or persons utilizing as a single unit) who, for a 

consideration, uses, possesses, or has the right to use or possess, any room or hotel or 

motel under any lease, concession, permit, right of access, license, agreement or 

otherwise. 

 

(o) Permanent resident. Any occupant who as of a given date shall have occupied, 

or has or shall have the right of occupancy, of any guest room in a hotel for more than 

30 consecutive days.  

 

(p) Person. An individual, firm partnership, joint venture, association, social club, 

fraternal organization, joint stock company, corporation, nonprofit corporation or 

cooperative  nonprofit membership, estate, trust, business trust receiver, trustee, 

syndicate, business entity, or any other group or combination acting as a unit, to 

include the plural as well as the singular number, excepting, however, the United 

States of America, the State of Georgia, and any political subdivision of either thereof 

upon which the County is without power to impose the tax herein provided.  



4 
 

(q) Private sector non-profit organization. A chamber of commerce, a convention and 

visitors bureau, a regional travel association, or any other private group organized for 

similar purposes which is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(6) of 

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; provided, however, that a county or municipality 

which  has prior to April 1, 1990, contracted for a required expenditure under this 

Code section with a private group which is exempt from federal income tax under 

provisions of  Section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code other than Section 501(c)(6) 

may continue to contract for required expenditures with such a private group.  

 

(r) Promoting tourism, conventions, and trade shows. Planning, conducting, or 

participating in programs of information and publicity designed to attract or advertise 

tourism, conventions, or trade shows.  

 

(s) Rent. The consideration received for occupancy valued in money, whether 

received in money or otherwise, including all receipts, cash, credits, and property or 

services of any kind or nature, and also the amount for which credit is allowed by the 

lodging provider to the occupant, without any deduction therefrom whatsoever.  

 

(t) Return. Any return filed or required to be filed as provided in this article.  

 

(u) State authority. An authority created by state law which serves a state-wide 

function, including, but not limited to, the Georgia Agricultural Exposition Authority, 

Georgia Aviation Authority, Georgia Building Authority, Georgia Development 

Authority, Georgia Environmental Finance Authority, Jekyll Island Authority, Lake 

Allatoona Preservation Authority, Georgia Medical Center Authority, Georgia Ports 

Authority, Georgia Regional Transportation Authority, State Road and Tollway 

Authority, Sports  Hall of Fame Authority, Georgia Technology Authority, and 

Georgia World Congress Center Authority, but shall not mean an authority created for 

support of a local government or a local purpose or function and shall not include 

authorities such as area  planning and development commissions and any 

organizational entities they may create,  regional commissions and any organizational 

entities they may create, or local water and  sewer authorities.  

 

(v) Tax. The excise tax of eight percent on occupants imposed by this article, as 

provided for by O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(b). 

 

(w) Tourism product development. The expenditure of funds for the creation or 

expansion of  physical attractions which are available and open to the public and 

which improve destination appeal to visitors, support visitors' experience, and are 

used by visitors. Such expenditures may include capital costs and operating expenses. 

Tourism product development may include:  

 

(1) Lodging for the public for no longer than 30 consecutive days to the same 

customer;  



5 
 

(2) Overnight or short-term sites for recreational vehicles, trailers, campers, 

or tents;  

(3) Meeting, convention, exhibit, and public assembly facilities;  

(4) Sports stadiums, arenas, and complexes;  

(5) Golf courses associated with a resort development that are open to the 

general public on a contract or fee basis;  

(6) Racing facilities, including dragstrips, motorcycle racetracks, and auto or 

stock car racetracks or speedways;  

(7) Amusement centers, amusement parks, theme parks, or amusement 

piers;  

(8) Hunting preserves, trapping preserves, or fishing preserves or lakes;  

(9) Visitor information and welcome centers;  

(10) Wayfinding signage;  

(11) Permanent, nonmigrating carnivals or fairs;  

(12) Airplanes, helicopters, buses, vans, or boats for excursions or 

sightseeing;  

(13) Boat rentals, boat party fishing services, rowboat or canoe rentals, horse 

shows, natural wonder attractions, picnic grounds, river-rafting services, 

scenic railroads for amusement, aerial tramways, rodeos, water slides, or 

wave pools;  

(14) Museums, planetariums, art galleries, botanical gardens, aquariums, or 

zoological gardens;  

(15) Parks, trails, and other recreational facilities; or  

(16) Performing arts facilities.  

 
Sec.19-51.3. - Tax rate.  

 
There is hereby set and levied on the occupant of a guest room of any 

hotel/motel/cabin/residence/lodge located within the City of Newnan a tax in the 
amount of eight percent (8%) of the gross rent for such occupancy.  
 
Sec. 19-51.4. - Exemptions.  
 

In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(h), the tax imposed by this article shall 
not apply to:  

 
(1) Charges made for any rooms, lodgings, or accommodations provided to any 

persons who certify that they are staying in such room, lodging, or 
accommodation as a result of the destruction of their home or residence by 
fire or other casualty;  

 

(2) The use of meeting rooms and other such facilities or any rooms, lodgings, or 
accommodations provided without charge;  

 

(3) Any rooms, lodgings, or accommodations furnished for a period of one or more 
days for use by Georgia state or local governmental officials or employees 
when traveling on official business. Notwithstanding the availability of any 
other means of identifying the person as a state or local government official or 



6 
 

employee, whenever a person pays for any rooms, lodgings, or 
accommodations with a state or local government credit or debit card, such 
rooms, lodgings, or accommodations shall be deemed to have been furnished 
for use by a Georgia state or local government official or employee traveling on 
official business for purposes of the exemption provided by this paragraph. For 
purpose of the exemption provided under this paragraph, a local government 
official or employee shall include officials or employees of counties, 
municipalities, consolidated governments, or county or independent school 
districts; or  

 

(4) Charges made for continuous use of any rooms, lodgings, or accommodations 
after the first 30 days of continuous occupancy. (O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(h)).  

 
Sec.19-51.5. - Use of revenue.  
 
(a) Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(b)(5)(A), an amount equal to not less than 50 

percent of the total amount of taxes collected that exceed the amount of taxes that 
would be collected at the rate of five percent (5%) shall be expended for promoting 
tourism, conventions, and trade shows by the destination marketing organization, 
as defined in this ordinance, designated by the City Council of the City of Newnan, 
Georgia; and  

 

(b) Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(b)(5)(B), the remaining amount of taxes collected 
that exceed the amount of taxes that would be collected at the rate of five percent 
(5%) which are not otherwise expended under (a) of this Section shall be expended 
for tourism product development, as defined in this ordinance; and  

 

(c) Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(a)(4.6)(A) and O.C.G.A. §48-13-51(a)(e)(2), the 

amount of taxes that would be collected at the rate of five percent, as referenced in (a) 

and (b) of this Section, an amount equal to the amount by which the total taxes 

collected under this Code section for a municipality within a county in which a 

convention center authority has been created by local Act of the General Assembly and 

which authority is in existence on or before July 1, 2001, for the purpose of owning or 

operating a facility may levy a tax under this Code section at a rate of five percent 

(5%).  A county or municipality levying a tax pursuant to this paragraph shall expend 

(in each fiscal year during which the tax is collected under this paragraph) an amount 

equal to at least 40 percent (40%) of the total taxes collected at the rate of 5 percent 

(5%) for the purpose of: 

 (i) Promoting tourism, conventions, and trade shows; 

 (ii) Funding and supporting a facility owned or operated by such convention  

  and visitors authority; or 

 (iii) For some combination of such purposes. 

(d) Specifically, the allocations of the eight percent (8%) levy shall be as follows:  

3% for general City operations;  2% for the purpose of promoting tourism, conventions 



7 
 

and trade shows such amount to be allocated to the Newnan Convention Center 

Authority;  up to 3%, but a minimum of 1.5% through a contract with a destination 

marketing organization for the purpose of promoting tourism, trade shows, and 

conventions; and 1.5% for capital projects and operating costs for tourism product 

development as defined by O.C.G.A.§48-13-202(6).  All such amounts shall be 

approved by the City in its annual budget process. 

Sec.19-51.6. - Record keeping.  
 
(a) Records required from operators; form. Every operator renting guestrooms in this 

City of Newnan to a person shall keep such records, receipts, invoices, and other 
pertinent papers in such form as the hotel/motel tax administrator may require or 
may be required by O.C.G.A. § 48-13-53.4 and § 48-13-62.  

 

(b) Examination of records; audits. The hotel/motel tax administrator or any person 
authorized in writing by the hotel/motel tax administrator may examine the 
books, papers, records, financial reports, equipment and other facilities of any 
operator renting guestrooms to a person and any operator liable for the tax, in 
order to verify the accuracy of any return made, or if no return is made by the 
operator, to ascertain and determine the amount required to be paid.  

 

(c) Authority to require reports; contents. In administration of the provisions of this 
article, the hotel/motel tax administrator may require the filing of reports by any 
persons or class of persons having in such person's possession or custody 
information relating to rentals of guestrooms which are subject to the tax. The 
reports shall be filed with the hotel/motel tax administrator, when required by the 
hotel/motel tax administrator, and shall set forth the rental charged for each 
occupancy, the date of occupancy, and such other information as the hotel/motel 
tax administrator may require.  

 
Sec. 19-51.7. - Registration of operator; form and contents; execution; certificate of 
authority.  
 
(a) Every person engaging or about to engage in business as an operator of a hotel in 

this City of Newnan shall immediately register with the hotel/motel tax 
administrator, on a form provided by the hotel/motel tax administrator. Persons 
engaged in such business must so register not later than 30 days after the date of 
adoption of the ordinance from which this section derives, and the tax is imposed 
as set forth in section 19-51.3, but such privilege of registration after the 
imposition of such tax shall not relieve any person from the obligation of payment 
or collection of tax on and after the date of imposition thereof, regardless of 
registration.  

 

(b) Such registration shall set forth the name under which such person transacts 
business or intends to transact business, the location of this place of business 
and such other information which would facilitate the collection of the tax as the 
hotel/motel tax administrator may require. The registration shall be signed by the 
owner if a natural person; in case of ownership by an association or partnership, 
by a member or partner; and in the case of ownership by a corporation, by an 



8 
 

officer. The hotel/motel tax administrator shall, after such registration, issue, 
without charge, a certificate of authority to each operator to collect the tax from 
the occupant. A separate registration shall be required for each place of business 
of an operator. Each certificate shall state the name and location of the business 
to which it is applicable.  

 
Sec.19-51.8. - Determination generally; returns; payments.  
 
(a) Due date of taxes and returns. All amount of such taxes shall be due and payable 

as provided for in O.C.G.A. § 48-13-53.2.  
 

(b) Collection fee allowed operators. Operators collecting the tax shall be allowed a 
percentage of the tax due and accounted for as provided for in O.C.G.A. § 48-13-
52.  

 
Sec.19-51.9. - Deficiency determinations.  
 
(a) Recomputation of tax; authority to make; basis of recomputation. If the hotel/motel 

tax administrator is not satisfied with the return of the tax or the amount of the 
tax required to be paid to the City of Newnan by any person, he/she may compute 
and determine the amount required to be paid upon the basis of any information 
within his/her possession or that may come into his/her possession. One or more 
deficiency determinations may be made of the amount due for one or more 
monthly period.  

 

(b) Interest on deficiency. The amount of the determination shall bear interest at the 
rate of three-fourths of one percent per month, or fraction thereof from the due 
date of taxes.  

 

(c) Notice of determination; service. The hotel/motel tax administrator or his/her 
designated representatives shall give to the operator written notice of his/her 
determination. The notice may be served personally or by mail; if by mail, such 
service shall be addressed to the operator at his address as it appears in the 
records of the hotel/motel tax administrator. Service by mail is complete when 
delivered by certified mail with a receipt signed by addressee.  

 

(d) Time within which notice of deficiency determination to be mailed. Except in the 
case of failure to make a return, every notice of a deficiency determination shall be 
mailed within three years after the 20th day of the calendar month following the 
monthly period for which the amount is proposed to be determined, or within 
three years after the return is filed, whichever period should last expire.  

 
Sec. 19-51.10. - Determination if no return made.  
 
(a) Estimate of gross receipts. If any person fails to make a return, the hotel/motel tax 

administrator shall make an estimate of the amount of the gross receipts of the 
person, or as the case may be, of the amount of the total rentals in this City of 
Newnan which are subject to the tax. The estimate shall be made for the period in 
respect to which the person failed to make the return and shall be based upon any 



9 
 

information which is or may come into the possession of the hotel/motel tax 
administrator. Written notice shall be given in the manner prescribed in Section 
19-51.9(c). 

 

(b) Interest on amount found due. The amount of the determination shall bear interest 
at the rate of three-fourths of one percent per month, or fraction thereof, from the 
20th day of the month following the monthly period, for which the amount or any 
portion thereof should have been returned, until the date of payment.  

 

Sec.19-51.11. - Collection of tax by City of Newnan.  
 
(a) Unpaid tax. Any tax due and payable under this article shall become delinquent 

for each month after the 20th day of each succeeding month during which it 
remains unpaid.  

 

(b) Action for delinquent tax. At any time within three years after any tax or any 
amount of tax required to be collected becomes due and payable and at any time 
within three years after the delinquency of any tax or any amount of tax required 
to be collected, the hotel/motel tax administrator may bring an action in a court of 
competent jurisdiction in the name of the City of Newnan to collect the amount 
delinquent together with interest, court fees, filing fees, attorney's fees and other 
legal fees incident thereto.  

 

(c) Extensions. The governing authority may grant an extension for payment of the tax 
as provided for in O.C.G.A. § 48-13-53.3.  

 

(d) Duty to withhold tax. Duty of successors or assignees of operator to withhold tax 
from purchase money. Governed by O.C.G.A. § 48-13-53.1.  

 

(e) Liability. Liability for failure to withhold; certificate of notice of amount due; time 
to enforce successor's liability. Governed by O.C.G.A. § 48-13-53.1.  

 

(f) Tax credit for interest paid more than once or erroneously or illegally collected. 
Whenever the amount of any tax or interest has been paid more than once, or has 
been erroneously or illegally collected or received by the City of Newnan under this 
article, it may be offset by the hotel/motel tax administrator. If the operator or 
person determines that he/she has overpaid or paid more than once, which fact 
has not been determined by the hotel/motel tax administrator, he/she will have 
three years from the date of payment to file a claim, in writing, stating the specific 
grounds upon which the claim is founded. The claim shall be audited. If the claim 
is approved by the hotel/motel tax administrator, the excess amount paid the City 
of Newnan may be credited on any amounts then due and payable from the person 
by whom it was paid, or his/her administrators or executors.  

 
Sec. 19-51.12. - Penalties and punishments for violation of this article.  
 
(a) Penalties. When any person fails to make a return or to pay the full amount of the 

tax, or when submitting a false or fraudulent return, penalties shall be imposed in 
accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-13-58.  

 



10 
 

(b) Punishments. Any person violating any of the provisions of this article shall be 
deemed guilty of an offense and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished as 
provided in Section 1-14 of the City of Newnan Code of Ordinances except that any 
person in violation of O.C.G.A. § 48-13-58.1, O.C.G.A. § 48-13-59, O.C.G.A. § 48-
13-60, O.C.G.A. § 48-13-61, O.C.G.A. § 48-13-62 and O.C.G.A. § 48-13-63 shall 
be subject to the applicable penalties and punishments specified on those 
sections.  

Sec. 19-51-13. - Effective date.  

The ordinance from which this article derives shall take effect on the 1st day of 
_______, 2019.  

 SO ORDAINED in lawfully assembled open session this _____ day of _________, 
2019. 

ATTEST:      _______________________________________ 
       L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk    Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
       _______________________________________ 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM    George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr.    Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager   Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: October 8, 2019   
 
Agenda Item:  Explore Newnan-Coweta, Inc 
 
Prepared by:   Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

 
 
 

Purpose:     Consideration of Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws establishing Explore 
Newnan- Coweta, Inc, for the purposes of promoting conventions and tourism.   
 
 
Background:    During the 2019 Regular Session of the Georgia General Assembly HB 626 
was approved pursuant to OCGA 48-13-51(b), therefore authorizing the City of Newnan to 
impose an excise tax of 8% on rooms, lodging, and accommodations.  This is commonly 
referred to as “hotel-motel tax’.  In 1999, the City implemented the tax at a rate of 5%.  The 
additional 3% is restricted for the purposes of promoting tourism, convention, and trade.  A 
minimum of ½ of the 3% must be expended via a destination marketing organization (DMO) and 
any remaining funds shall be expended on tourism product development.    
 
A matching HB was also approved for Coweta County during the 2019 General Assembly.  City 
staff has been working very closely with the staff at Coweta County to develop the necessary 
articles to create a joint DMO for the purposes of promoting tourism county-wide.  
 
The Explore Newnan-Coweta is organized and will operate exclusively as private 501(c)(6) 
entity per the IRS.  The board will consist of nine (9) members serving varying terms.  As 
currently proposed, the City will have two (2) representatives on the board, one (1) appointed by 
Council and one (1) being the City Manager or his designee.   
 
 
Recommendation:  It is the recommendation of staff to adopt the Articles of Incorporation and  
Bylaws as presented.   
 
At a later date, a contract between the City of Newnan and Explore Newnan-Coweta will be 
presented for consideration. This contract will set forth specific obligations and responsibilities of 
Explore Newnan-Coweta.  The contract is required by statute.    
 
 
Attachments:     Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 
 
           
Previous Discussions with Council:      N/A 



1 
 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
 

OF 
 

EXPLORE NEWNAN-COWETA, INC. 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

 The name of the Corporation is Explore Newnan-Coweta, Inc. 
 

ARTICLE II 

 
 The Corporation is organized pursuant to the Georgia Nonprofit Corporation 
Code. 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

 The Corporation shall have members. 
 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
 The purposes for which the Corporation is formed are as follows: 
 
 (a) The Corporation is organized and operated exclusively for the purposes 

within the meaning of Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The Corporation 

is not organized and shall not be operated for pecuniary gain or profit. 

 
 (b) The Corporation shall serve as a Destination Marketing Organization as 

defined in O.C.G.A. § 48-13-50.2 and § 48-13-51. 

 
 (c) This Corporation is not organized and shall not be operated for pecuniary 

gain or profit.  No part of the property or net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to 

the benefit of or be distributable to its Directors, officers or other private persons, 

except that the Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable 

compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in 

furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article IV(b) of these Articles.  The Corporation 



2 
 

shall not lobby or otherwise attempt to influence legislation or participate or intervene 

in (including publication or distribution of statements) any political campaign on 

behalf of any candidate for public office.  Notwithstanding any provision of these 

Articles, the Corporation shall not carry on any other activities to the extent that such 

activities are not permitted to be carried on by an organization described in Section 

501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (or the corresponding 

provision of any future United states Internal Revenue Law). 

ARTICLE V 
 

 The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by a Board of Directors.  The 

number of Directors of the Corporation and method of election shall be set out in the 

bylaws and Article VI herein below. 

ARTICLE VI 
 

 The initial Board of Directors shall consist of nine (9) directors.  The number of 

Directors may be changed only by a majority vote of both the City Council of the City of 

Newnan and the Coweta County Commission to amend these Articles of Incorporation or the 

Bylaws of the Corporation. The appointment, tenure and qualifications of the directors 

of the Corporation shall be as follows: 

 1. Standing Appointments 

a. The City Manager, of the City of Newnan, Georgia, or his/her 
 designee. 
 
b. The County Administrator, of Coweta County, Georgia, or his/her 
 designee. 
 

 2. Local Governing Body Appointments 
 

a. One (1) member elected by the City Council of the City of Newnan, 

Georgia to be selected by a majority of the members of the 

governing body of the City of Newnan, Georgia, such member to be 



3 
 

selected to serve a three (3) year term. 

b. One (1) member elected by Coweta County Commission to be 

selected by a majority of the members of the governing body of 

Coweta County, such member to be selected to serve a three (3) 

year term.  

 3. Four (4) members who serve as owner or senior management of a hotel, 

retail establishment, restaurant, or other tourism related business entity 

in Newnan, Georgia or Coweta County, Georgia.  Such members are to be 

elected for initial terms by majority vote of the two (2) standing 

appointments and two (2) local governing body appointments as stated 

above.  After the initial terms, election of such members shall be by 

majority vote of the entire Board of Directors.  Initial terms shall be 

staggered with one (1) member serving a one (1) year term, two (2) 

members serving a two (2) year term, and one (1) member serving a three 

(3) year term.  After the initial term, such members shall serve a three (3) 

year term.  

 
4. One (1) member representing the Newnan Coweta Chamber of 

Commerce.  Such member is to be elected for an initial one-year term by 

majority vote of the two (2) standing appointments and two (2) local 

governing body appointments as stated above.  After the initial one-year 

term, election of such member shall be by majority vote of the entire 

Board of Directors and the term of office for such member shall be two 

(2) years. 

  



4 
 

 
ARTICLE VII 

 
 In the event of the dissolution of the Corporation to the extent allowed under 

applicable law, after all lawful debt and liabilities of the Corporation have been paid, 

all the assets of the Corporation shall be distributed to, or its assets shall be sold and 

the proceeds distributed to, another organization organized and operating for the same 

purposes for which the Corporation is organized and operating which shall be selected 

by the Board of Directors of the Corporation; provided, however, that any such 

recipient organization or organizations shall at that time qualify as exempt from 

taxation under the provisions of Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 

as an organization described in Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986, or the corresponding provisions of any subsequent law or to the federal 

government, or any state or local government for a public purpose.  In the event that 

upon the dissolution of the Corporation the Board of Directors of the Corporation fail 

to dispose of such assets in the manner herein provided within a reasonable time, the 

Superior Court of Coweta County, Georgia shall make such distribution of assets as 

herein provided, exclusively for such purposes or to such organizations as said Court 

shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes. 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

 (a) Each person who is or was a director or officer of the Corporation, and 

each person who is or was a director or officer of the Corporation shall be indemnified 

by the Corporation for all costs of litigation (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, 

fines and amounts  paid in settlement which are allowed to be paid, advanced or 

reimbursed by the Corporation under the laws of the State of Georgia to the fullest 

extent permitted by O.C.G.A. §14-3-202(b)(4) and which are actually and reasonably 

incurred in connection with any action, suit, or proceeding, pending or threatened, 



5 
 

whether civil, criminal, arbitrative, administrative, or investigative, whether formal or 

informal, in which such person may be involved by reason of his being or having been 

a director or officer of this Corporation.  Such indemnification, reimbursement or 

advance shall be made only in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia, 

including the Georgia Nonprofit Corporation Code §14-3-202(b)(4), subject to the 

conditions under such statutory provisions. 

 (b) In any instance where the laws of the State of Georgia permit 

indemnification, reimbursement or advances to be provided to persons who are or 

have been an officer or director of the Corporation only on a determination that certain 

specified standards of conduct have been met, that all statutory requirements and 

procedures have been satisfied, and that upon application for indemnification, 

reimbursement or advances by any such person the Corporation shall promptly cause 

such determination to be made in accordance with the statutory procedures of Georgia 

law. 

 
 (c) Nothing in this Article shall be construed as limiting the applicability and 

Code of Georgia law with respect to indemnification, reimbursement and advances for 

expenses; further, as a condition to any such right of indemnification, the Corporation 

may require that it be permitted to participate in the defense of any such  action or 

proceeding through legal counsel designated by the Corporation and at the expense of 

the Corporation. 

 
 (d) In accordance with the law of the State of Georgia, the Corporation may 

purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any such persons whether or not the 

Corporation would have the power to indemnify such officers and directors against 

any liability under the law of the State of Georgia.   



6 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 

 The Articles of Incorporation of the corporation may be amended at any time in 

the manner provided in the Georgia Nonprofit Corporation Code (or the corresponding 

provision of any future Georgia nonprofit corporation law) by the affirmative vote of not 

less than seventy seven percent (77%) of the directors then in office at a properly 

called meeting as set forth in the bylaws except that any number of directors and 

membership of the Board of Directors set out in Article VI hereinabove may only be 

altered or amended by a majority vote of the City Council of the City of Newnan, 

Georgia and a majority vote by the Coweta County Commission, provided however, 

that no amendment may be made which would cause the organization no longer to be 

qualified as an exempt organization described in Section 501(c)(6) of the Code. 

 
ARTICLE X 

 
 The registered office of the Corporation shall be 11 Perry Street, Newnan, 

Georgia 30263 in Coweta County.  The initial registered agent of the Corporation at 

such address shall be C. Bradford Sears, Jr. 

  



7 
 

 

ARTICLE XI 
 

 The name and address of the incorporator is: 
 
  C. Bradford Sears, Jr. 
  Sanders, Haugen & Sears, P.C. 
  11 Perry Street 
  Newnan, Georgia 30263 
 
 The effective date of these Articles of Incorporation shall be ________________, 

20__. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREAS, the undersigned has executed these Articles of 

Incorporation this _____ day of ___________________, 20____. 

 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      C. Bradford Sears, Jr. 
      Incorporator 



1  

BYLAWS 

OF 

EXPLORE NEWNAN-COWETA, INC  
 

(a Georgia nonprofit corporation)  
(Approved ______________________) 

 

 

ARTICLE I 
Name 

 
The name of the corporation is “Explore Newnan-Coweta, Inc." (the 

"Corporation"). 

ARTICLE II 
Offices 

 
 The principal office of the Corporation shall be located in Coweta County, 

Georgia. 

 
ARTICLE III 

Purposes 

 
The Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for the 

purposes set out in Section 50l(c) (6) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended (the "Code"), and to provide, conduct and engage in any other services 

or activities in furtherance of such purposes. In particular, the Corporation is 

organized and shall be operated exclusively for: 

A) the encouragement, solicitation, promotion, procurement and servicing of 

conferences, seminars, special events, regional recreational activities; 

B) the development of tourism through the attraction of visitors to Newnan 

and Coweta County, Georgia; 

C) to foster better public understanding on the part of individuals and 



2  

businesses of the importance of the convention and visitor’s industry to 

the local economy; to encourage and assist the cooperation between the 

businesses and industries servicing visitors, conventions, and other 

meetings; and 

D) to receive and disburse public funds appropriated to its use and to 

receive and disburse private funds and other revenue which may be 

received from time to time which would assist in the accomplishment of 

the purposes of the Corporation. 

The Corporation shall have and possess all the benefits, privileges, 

rights, and powers created, given, extended or conferred by the provisions of all 

applicable laws of the State of Georgia pertaining to nonprofit corporations and 

any additions or amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE IV 
Assets 

 
The Corporation may receive and accept property, whether real, personal, 

or mixed, by way of gift, bequest, or devise, from any person, firm, trust, 

corporation or governmental entity, to be held, administered, and disposed of in 

accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws. Provided, 

however, that no gift, bequest, or devise of any such property shall be received 

and accepted if it be conditioned or limited in such manner as shall require the 

disposition of the income or its principal for any purposes inconsistent with the 

purposes of this Corporation as stated in the Articles of Incorporation and these 

Bylaws, or as shall, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, jeopardize the 

federal income tax exemption of this Corporation under Section 501(c) (6) of the 

Code. 

If at some point the Corporation elects to purchase property, it is 



3  

understood that the IRS 501(c) (6) status would have to be altered or a separate 

subsidiary will be registered as a real estate holding company that would be 

registered under Section 50l(c) (2) of the Code. 

No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit 

of, or be distributable to the Directors or officers, except that the Corporation 

shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for 

services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the 

purposes set forth in Article III hereof. 

ARTICLE V 
Membership 

 
The only members of the corporation shall be the active members of its 

Board of Directors during the life of their term(s). Once a director leaves his or 

her office, he or she will no longer be a member of the corporation, and his or 

her membership shall transfer to the replacement director. All voting authority 

for the corporation will be reserved for the members of the Board of Directors in 

that capacity only and in accordance with these bylaws. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

Board of Directors 

Section  6.01  Duties  and  Responsibilities;  Compensation.  The business 

and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by a Board of Directors which 

may exercise all powers of the Corporation, subject to any restrictions imposed by 

law, by the Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws. The directors shall serve 

without compensation. 

Section 6.02 Number, Election, Qualifications and Term of Office.  
 

 The Board of Directors shall consist of nine (9) directors.  The number of 

directors may be changed only by a majority vote of both the City Council of the City of 



4  

Newnan and the Coweta County Commission to amend the Bylaws. The appointment, 

tenure and qualifications of the directors of the Corporation shall be as follows: 

 1. Standing Appointments 

a. The City Manager, of the City of Newnan, Georgia, or his/her 
 designee; 
 
b. The County Administrator, of Coweta County, Georgia, or 
 his/her designee; 
 

 2. Local Governing Body Appointments 
 

a. One (1) member elected by the City Council of the City of 

Newnan, Georgia to be selected by a majority of the members 

of the governing body of the City of Newnan, Georgia, such 

member to be selected to serve a three (3) year term. 

 
b. One (1) member elected by the Coweta County Commission to 

be selected by a majority of the members of the governing 

body of Coweta County, such member to be selected to serve 

a three (3) year term.  

 
 3. Four (4) members who serve as owner or senior management of a 

hotel or other tourism related business entity in Newnan, Georgia or 

Coweta County, Georgia.  Such members are to be elected for initial 

terms by majority vote of the two (2) standing appointments and two 

(2) local governing body appointments as stated above.  After the 

initial terms, election of such members shall be by majority vote of 

the entire Board of Directors.  Initial terms shall be staggered with 

one (1) member serving a one (1) year term, two (2) members serving 

a two (2) year term, and one (1) member serving a three (3) year 

term.  After the initial term, such members shall serve a three (3) 



5  

year term.  

 

4. One (1) member representing the Newnan Coweta Chamber of 

Commerce.  Such member is to be elected for an initial one-year 

term by majority vote of the two (2) standing appointments and two 

(2) local governing body appointments as stated above.  After the 

initial one-year term, election of such member shall be by majority 

vote of the entire Board of Directors and the term of office for such 

member shall be two (2) years. 

Section 6.03 Ex Officio Directors. Upon majority vote of the Board of 

Directors, up to four (4) ex officio directors may be appointed to serve in an 

advisory capacity to the Board.  Ex officio directors shall have professional 

knowledge and a background within the tourism industry. Ex officio directors 

shall not vote on any matter whatsoever before the Corporation's Board of 

Directors.  

Section 6.04 Regular Meetings.   The Board shall hold regular meetings not less 

than quarterly (once every three months) and at such other times as the 

Chairman or a majority of Directors direct.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 

Board shall have a meeting every January for the purposes of electing the Officers 

and for any other purposes contained in a written notice to the Directors (the 

“January Meeting”).  The Board shall also hold a meeting each year (“Annual 

Meeting”) at such times as the Chairman directs.  Special meetings of the Board 

may be called as set out in Section 6.05 Special Meetings.  The Board may hold 

its meetings at such place or places as it may from time to time determine but in 

absence of such determination by the Board, all meetings shall be at the 



6  

Corporation’s principal place of business.  All meetings of the Board must be 

conducted within the State of Georgia. 

Section 6.05 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may 

be called by or at the request of the Chairman of the Corporation or a majority of 

the Board of Directors. Notice of each special meeting shall be sent to each 

director by United States Mail, postage prepaid, by private overnight delivery 

service or by electronic transmission at least two (2) days in advance. When, 

however, circumstances require a special meeting on less than two (2) days prior 

written notice, such notification may be made by any other reasonably effective 

method. The time and place and purpose of the special meeting shall be set forth 

in the notice. 

 Section 6.06 Quorum. A majority of the voting directors of the Corporation 

presently in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at 

any meeting of the Board of Directors. 

Section 6.07 Manner of Acting. The act of the majority of the directors present 

at a meeting at which a quorum is present or is deemed to be present shall be the 

act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by 

these Bylaws.  

Section 6.08 Conduct of Meetings. The Chairman, and in his or her absence, 

the Vice Chairman, and in their absence, any director chosen by the directors 

present, shall conduct meetings of the Board of Directors. The transaction of 

parliamentary business coming before the Board of Directors shall be generally 

governed by Roberts' Rules of Order, Newly Revised. Meetings shall be conducted 



7  

in accordance with O.C.G.A. 50-14- 1 to the extent applicable. 

Section  6.09 Vacancies; Absences. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of 

Directors shall be filled by nomination and confirmation of appointment of the 

nominating or appointing authority under Article VI, Section 6.02 of these 

Bylaws. If the Chairman of the Board of Directors resigns, they may do so by 

presenting written notice to the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors who may 

accept the resignation without approval of the full Board. 

Section 6.10 Committees. Standing or temporary committees of the 

Corporation may be created by action of the Board of Directors. The charge of 

each committee will be stated in the resolution by which it is created. The Board 

will select the members of each committee by majority vote; committee 

appointments can include individuals who are not members of the Corporation 

Board of Directors, however, director members of each committee shall serve as 

chairman at the pleasure of the Chairman, Board of Directors. Each committee 

shall report regularly to the Board of Directors of the Corporation at meetings, or 

through written reports. 

 Section 6.11 Agenda. Any member of the Board of Directors may place an item 

of business on the agenda of meetings of the Board of Directors or on the agenda 

of any committee meeting by notifying the Executive Director of the Corporation 

by 12:00 p.m. on the day preceding the date of the meeting of the Board of 

Directors or the committee. 

Section 6.12 Open Meetings and Open Records. The Board will comply with 

the State of Georgia Open Meetings Act and the State of Georgia Open Records 



8  

Act.  Private executive sessions will be allowed by motion and majority vote of the 

Board and may be called to address legal actions, Corporation personnel matters, 

purchase and lease of real estate and other sensitive topics.  Ex officio Directors 

may be entitled to attend executive sessions, if requested by the Chairman, but 

not participate in such meeting unless requested by the Chairman. 

Section 6.13 Meetings and Participation by Conference Call. 

  Any meeting (including any committee meeting) for which proper notice 

has been provided may be conducted by conference call using a speaker 

telephone capable of allowing all members to hear all the discussion of the 

meeting. At least a quorum must be physically present at the designated meeting 

site in Coweta County. 

ARTICLE VII 
Officers 

Section 7.01 Officers; Number. The principal officers of the Corporation shall be 

the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer, each of whom shall be 

elected by the Board of Directors. Such other officers and assistant officers as 

may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. 

Section 7.02 Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation to be 

elected by the Board of Directors shall be elected by the Board of Directors 

annually by the Board of Directors at the first regularly scheduled meeting in 

January.  Each officer shall hold office until his or her successor shall have been 

duly elected and qualified, or until his or her prior death, resignation or removal.  

 Section 7.03 Removal. Any officer may be removed with or without cause by 

vote of a majority of the Board of Directors. 



9  

Section 7.04 Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation (in 
 

writing to the Chairman), removal, disqualification or otherwise, shall be filled by 

the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term of such office as 

soon after the occurrence of such vacancy as may be convenient. 

Section 7.05 Chairman. The Chairman shall be the principal elected officer of 

the Corporation and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall, in 

general, supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Corporation. 

The Chairman shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board of 

Directors. In general, the Chairman shall perform all duties incident to the office 

of Chairman and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of 

Directors from time to time. 

Section 7.06 Vice Chairman. In  the absence of the Chairman or in the 

event of his death, inability or refusal to act, or in the event for any reason it shall 

be impracticable for the Chairman to act personally, the Vice Chairman shall 

perform the duties of the Chairman, and when so acting, shall have all the powers 

of and be subject to all the transactions upon the Chairman. The Vice Chairman 

shall perform such other duties and have such authority as from time to time may 

be delegated or assigned to him by the Board of Directors. 

Section 7.07 Secretary. The Secretary shall: 
 

A) keep minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors in one (1) or more 

books provided for that purpose; 

B) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of 

these Bylaws or as required by law; 

C) be custodian of the records of the Corporation; 



10  

 

D) keep or arrange for the keeping of a register of the post office address of 

each director which shall be furnished to the Secretary by each director; 

and 

E) in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and have 

such other duties and exercise such authority as from time to time may 

be delegated or assigned to him by the Board of Directors. 

 
Section 7.08 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall: 

 

A) oversee the financial health of the organization; and 
 

B) in general, perform all of the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and 

have other duties and exercise such other authority as from time to time 

may be delegated or assigned to him by the Board of Directors. If required 

by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give bond for the faithful 

discharge of his or her duties in such sum and with such surety or 

sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. 

Section 7.09 Employee Officers.  The Board of Directors shall have the power 

to hire a director to manage the day-to-day activities of the Corporation. The 

Board of Directors shall also have the power to terminate said director by a 

majority vote. In all other respects, said vote regarding termination shall be 

held in accordance with these Bylaws. Such employee director shall have the 

title(s), duties, and compensation as determined by the Board of Directors. 

The Board of Directors shall have authority to set the amount of 

compensation to any and all employees and/or subcontractors of the 

corporation. All requests for modification of employee and/or subcontractor 

compensation shall be submitted to the Board of Directors for a vote in 



11  

accordance with these Bylaws. 

 

ARTICLE VIII. 
Contracts, Loans, Financial Policy; Special 

Acts 

 
Section 8.01 Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any Board Officer 
 

or Officers, Agent or Agents, including the Executive Director, to enter into any 

contract or execute or deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of 

the Corporation, and such authorization may be general or confined to specific 

instances. In the absence of other designation, all instruments entered into by 

the Corporation shall be executed in the name of the Corporation by the 

Chairman or the Vice Chairman and attested by the Secretary or the Treasurer. 

When so executed no other party to such instrument or any third party shall be 

required to make any inquiry into the authority of the signing officer or officers. 

 
Section 8.02 Loans. No indebtedness for borrowed money shall be contracted on 
 

behalf of the Corporation and no evidence of such indebtedness shall be issued 

in its name unless authorized by or under the authority of a resolution of the 

Board of Directors. Such authorization may be general or confined to specific 

instances. 

Section 8.03 Financial Policy.  The Board of Directors shall prepare, and adopt 

by majority vote, financial policies to insure financial stability of the Corporation.  

Such policies shall include, but not be limited to: banking selection, audit 

requirements, purchasing thresholds, procurement and vendor selection, and 

permissible investment instruments. 

  



12  

 

ARTICLE IX 
Amendments 

 
Section 9.01 Amendment. These Bylaws, with exception to Section 6.02, may be 

altered, amended or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by the Board of 

Directors by the affirmative vote of not less than seventy-seven (77) percent of all 

directors at a properly called meeting of the Board of Directors.  

 

Section 9.02 Notice of Proposed Amendment. Notwithstanding any provision of 
 

these Bylaws concerning notice of meetings, a proposed change to the Bylaws 

must be submitted in writing to all directors at least ten (10) days prior to the 

meeting in which the change will be considered. The proposed change will 

contain the current wording of the provision to be changed and the wording of 

the proposed change. 

ARTICLE X 
Dissolutions 

 
In the event of the liquidation or dissolution of the Corporation, whether 

voluntary or involuntary, the Corporation's assets, after all of the Corporation's 

liabilities and obligations have been discharged or adequate provision has been 

made therefore, shall be distributed to any association or associations organized 

for purposes similar to the purposes of the Corporation as may be designated by 

a majority of the Directors of the Corporation then holding office. 

 

ARTICLE XI 
Articles of Incorporation 

 
The Corporation shall be bound by the restrictions contained in its 

Articles of Incorporation and such Articles shall control to the extent 



13  

inconsistent with any provision of these Bylaws; however, if necessary, the 

Board of Directors may amend the Articles of Incorporation by vote consistent 

with Article IX, Section 9.01. 

ARTICLE XII 
Conflicts of Interest 

 
Directors shall adhere to the Corporation's Conflict of Interest Policy, as 

it may be adopted by the Board of Directors, which policy will be consistent 

with and in adherence to the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 14-3-860 through § 14-3-

865 of the Georgia Nonprofit Corporation Code, and the Code of Ethics For 

Government Service, O.C.G.A. § 45-10-1 as applicable as such provisions may be 

amended from time to time. Any director refraining from voting on a particular 

matter pursuant to these provisions shall also recuse himself or herself from 

discussions or deliberations on the matter. 

 Even the appearance of impropriety is to be avoided. No Director shall 

accept a gift, payment, or other benefit in exchange for any consideration on any 

matter before the Board. 

ARTICLE XIII 
Code of Ethics 

13.1 Purpose. To give Board of Directors goals they should at all times strive to 

meet and exceed. 

 

13.2 Code. Put loyalty to the highest moral principles and to country above 

loyalty to persons, party, or department; Uphold the Federal and State 

Constitutions, laws, and legal regulations and never be a party to their evasion; 

Never discriminate unfairly by the dispensing of special favors or privileges to 

anyone, and never accept, for self or family, favors or benefits under 



14  

circumstances which might be reasonably construed as influencing performance 

of duties; Make no private promises of any kind binding upon the duties of office, 

since a director has no private word which can be binding on public duty; Engage 

in no business with the Corporation, directly or indirectly, inconsistent with the 

best interest thereof; Never use information obtained confidentially in the 

performance of duties as a means for making private profit; Expose corruption 

wherever discovered; And uphold these principles, ever conscious that this office 

is a public trust. 

ARTICLE XIV 
Fiscal Year 

 
The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the twelve (12) month period 

determined and set by the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE XV 
Corporate Seal 

 

The Board of Directors shall procure a corporate seal which shall be 

circular in form, and contain thereon the name of the Corporation and its year of 

incorporation. 

ARTICLE XVI 
Indemnification 

Section 16.01 Authority to Indemnify 

A) To the extent authorized by O.C.G.A. §14-3-202(b)(4) and except as 

provided in subsections (b) and (c) of this Section 16.01, the Corporation 

shall indemnify an individual made a party to a proceeding because such 

individual is or was a Director against liability incurred in the 

proceeding, if such Director acted in a manner such director believed in 

good faith to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation 



15  

and, in the case of any criminal proceeding, such Director had no 

reasonable cause to believe the conduct was unlawful. 

B) The Corporation may not indemnify a Director under this section 16.0l: 

 

1. In connection with a proceeding by or in the right of the 

Corporation in which the Director was adjudged liable to the 

Corporation; or 

2. In connection with any other proceeding in which the Director 

adjudged liable on the basis that personal benefit was improperly 

received by the Director. 

C) Indemnification permitted under this Section 16.01 in connection with a 

proceeding by or in the right of the Corporation is limited to reasonable 

expenses incurred in connection with the proceeding.  

Section 16.02. Mandatory Indemnification. Unless otherwise provided in the 
 

Articles of Incorporation, to the extent that a Director has been successful, on the 

merits or otherwise, in the defense of any proceeding to which the Director was a 

party, or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter therein, because that 

individual is or was a Director of the Corporation, the Corporation shall 

indemnify the Director against reasonable expenses incurred by the Director in 

connection therewith. 

Section 16.03 Advance for Expenses. 

 

A) The Corporation shall pay for or reimburse the reasonable expenses 

incurred by a Director who is a party to a proceeding in advance of final 

disposition of the proceeding if: 

1. the Director furnishes the Corporation a written affirmation of 

such Director's good faith belief that such Director has met the 



16  

standard of conduct set forth in Section 16.01(a) of these Bylaws; 

and 

2. The Director furnishes the Corporation a written undertaking, 

executed personally or on the Director's behalf, to repay any 

advances if it is ultimately determined that the Director is not 

entitled to indemnification under Section 16.01. 

B) The undertaking required by Section 16.03(a) (2) must be an unlimited 

general obligation of the Director, but need not be secured and may be 

accepted without reference to financial ability to make repayment. 

Section 16.04 Determination and Authorization of Indemnification. 

 

A) The Corporation may not indemnify a Director under Section 16.01 of 

these Bylaws unless authorized there under and a determination has 

been made in the specific case that indemnification of the Director is 

required in the circumstances because the Director has met the standard 

of conduct set forth in Section 16.0l (a). 

B) The determination shall be made: 
 

1. by the Board of Directors by majority vote of a quorum consisting 

of Directors not at the time parties to the proceeding; or 

2. if a quorum cannot be obtained under subparagraph (1) of this 

subsection, by majority vote of a committee duly designated by the 

Board of Directors (in which designated Directors who are parties 

may participate), consisting solely of two (2) or more Directors not 

at the time parties to the proceeding; or 

3. by special legal counsel: 
 

i. Selected by the Board of Directors or its committee in the 



17  

manner prescribed in subparagraphs (1) or (2) of this 

subsection (b); or 

ii. If a quorum of the Board of Directors cannot be obtained 

under subparagraph (1) of this subsection (b) and a 

committee cannot be designated under subparagraph (2) of 

this subsection (b), selected by majority vote of the full 

Board of Directors (in which selection Directors who are 

parties may participate). 

C) Authorization of indemnification or an obligation to indemnify and 

evaluation as to reasonableness of expenses shall be made in the same 

manner as the determination that indemnification is required, except 

that if the determination that indemnification is required as set forth in 

Section 16.04 subparagraph (B). 

 

Section 16.05 Indemnification of Officers, Employees, and Agents. 

 

Unless the Articles of Incorporation provide otherwise: 
 

A) an officer of the Corporation who is not a Director is entitled to 

mandatory indemnification under Section 16.02 of these Bylaws to the 

same extent as a Director; and 

B) The Corporation may, in the discretion of the Board of Directors, 

indemnify and advance expenses to an officer, employee, or agent, who is 

not a Director, to the extent the Board deems appropriate, consistent 

with public policy. 

  



18  

 

Section 16.06 Director’s Expenses as a Witness. This Article XVI does not limit 
 

the Corporation's power to pay or reimburse expenses incurred by a Director in 

connection with such Director's appearance as a witness in a proceeding at a 

time when such Director has not been made a named defendant or respondent 

to the proceeding. 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: October 8, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Consideration of amendment to Chapter 3, Alcoholic 
Beverages, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Newnan, Georgia to add 
new Sections.  
 
Prepared and Presented by:   Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 
 
Purpose: Newnan City Council may consider amending Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages, of the 
Code of Ordinances for the City of Newnan, Georgia to provide for the regulation of the sale and 
possession of alcoholic beverage licenses for certain establishments.  More specifically, the 
amendment will provide regulations for the sale and possession of alcoholic beverages in the 
City of Newnan in certain establishments holding a private special event license and in 
independent living facilities and /or an assisted living facilities. 
 
Background: Newnan City Council, in Summer 2019, was approached by private enterprises 
seeking to amend the current Code of Ordinances to allow for the sale and possession of 
alcoholic beverages.  The Newnan City Council directed the City Attorney as well as City staff 
to prepare an ordinance amendment for consideration.  
 
Funding: N/A 
 
Recommendation: Newnan City Council may provide direction to City staff to amend Chapter 3, 
Alcoholic Beverages, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Newnan, Georgia to add new 
Sections as described herein.  
 
Attachments: Ordinance to Amend Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages, of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Newnan, Georgia to provide for the regulation of the sale and possession of 
alcoholic beverage licenses; to provide for severability; and for other purposes. 
        
Previous Discussions with Council: Newnan City Council received a request from private 
enterprise in Summer 2019 to amend the current Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3, Alcoholic 
Beverages to allow for the sale and possession of alcoholic beverages by special event and 
assisted living facilities.  
 



 

1 
 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 3, ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA TO PROVIDE FOR 
THE REGULATION OF THE SALE AND POSSESSION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE 

LICENSES; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
 

 WHEREAS, it has been determined that certain changes are necessary in the 
text of Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Newnan to provide for the regulation of sale and possession of alcoholic beverages 
licenses in the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED by the 
City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia, and it is hereby ordained by the authority 

of same: 
 
 Section I: Regulation of sales and consumption of alcoholic beverages of 
Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages, be and is hereby amended by providing for the 
regulation of the sale and possession of alcoholic beverages in the City of Newnan in 
certain establishments holding a private special event license by adding a new Section 
3-20(k) Establishments Holding A Private Special Event to read as follows: 
 
 Section 3-20(k). Establishments Holding A Private Special Event. 
  
 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3-81(a) and Section 3-20(f) of this 
Chapter, an establishment holding a private special event license which has on its 
premises a fully operational commercial kitchen facility and is capable of providing the 
level of food service that would be available at a restaurant, open to the public, would 
be required to provide, may apply for either an on premises consumption distilled 
spirits license and/or beer and/or wine license for sales of alcoholic beverages for 
consumption on the premises for service only at the establishment holding the private 
special events license, provided that sales of food make up 55% or more of the 
combined food and alcoholic beverages sales as provided in Section 3-81(a) of this 
Chapter and the other provisions of this Chapter where applicable.  Further, all other 
provisions of Article IV. Regulations of Sales By The Drink of this Chapter shall apply 
including the reporting and taxation requirements of Article VII, Taxation of Beverages 
By The Drink of this Chapter.  The license fees set out in the Section 3-31 shall apply 
to a license issued under this Section. 
 
 Section II. Regulation of sales and consumption of alcoholic beverages of 
Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages, be and is hereby amended by providing for the 
regulation of the sale and possession of alcoholic beverages in the City of Newnan in 

independent living facilities and/or an assisted living facility by adding a new Section 
3-99 Independent Living Facilities and/or Assisted Living Facilities to read as follows: 
 
 Section 3-99. Independent Living Facilities and/or Assisted Living  
    Facilities. 
 
 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3-81(a) of this Chapter, an  
independent living facility and/or an assisted living facility as defined in the City of 



 

2 
 

Newnan Zoning Ordinance operating a full service commercial kitchen and dining 
facility for its residents as a restaurant, open to the public, would be required to have 
may apply for either an on premises consumption distilled spirits license and/or beer 
and/or wine license for sales of alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises 
for service only at such establishment’s dining facility provided that sales of food make 
up 55% or more of the combined food and alcoholic beverages sales as provided in 
Section 3-81(a) of this Chapter.  Further all other provisions of Article IV, Regulations 
of Sales By The Drink of this Chapter and the other provisions of this Chapter where 
applicable shall apply as well as the reporting and taxation requirements of Article 
VIII, Taxation of Beverages By The Drink of this Chapter.  The fees set out in Section 
3-31 shall apply to a license issued under this Section. 
 
 Section III. Should any phrase, clause, sentence, or section of this Ordinance 
be deemed unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination 

shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, which provisions shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Section IV. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be upon adoption. 
 
 DONE, RATIFIED and PASSED, by the City Council of the City of Newnan, 
Georgia, this the ______ day of ___________________, 2019, in regular session. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 

 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      _________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 
 



 
City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: October 8, 2019  
 
 
Agenda Item:  Approve Multi-Family (Apartments) Rental Ordinance 
 
 
Prepared by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 
  

 
 

Purpose:   Approval of the Multi-Family Rental Ordinance. This program will preserve 
property values, promote economic vitality and crime prevention and ensure 
safe, healthy and clean environments for the occupants and surrounding areas, 
as well as promoting ongoing investments in upkeep and maintenance.  

 
 
Background: The Building Department had developed an ordinance for the purpose of 

inspecting and maintaining existing apartment complexes in The City of Newnan. 
These inspections will be performed by third party inspectors and compliance 
inspection certificates will be submitted annually with their Occupational Tax 
Certificates.   

 
 
Option 1 – Pass the ordinance as written 
Option 2 – Send back to staff for re-write 
 
 
 
    
Funding: No Funding Implications 
 
 
Recommendation: Option 1  
 

 

Previous Discussion with Council:  None    
 
  



1 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5, BUILDINGS AND BUILDING 
REGULATIONS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEWNAN, 

GEORGIA BY ADDING A NEW ARTICLE VIII: MULTI FAMILY RENTAL HOUSING; 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Newnan are charged 
with the protection of the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Newnan; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 8-2—25(a) provides for state-wide application of 
certain state minimum standard codes and municipal enforcement of such codes; and 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 8—2—25(b) and (c) provide for the municipal 
adoption and enforcement of other state minimum standard codes and allow for 
municipalities to adopt more stringent codes based on public safety factors; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Newnan has adopted all such state minimum codes 
and such adoption is codified as Chapter 5, Article I of the City of Newnan Code of 
Ordinances; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Newnan have further 
determined that a decline in the integrity of multifamily rental units has a negative 
impact on the public, including secondary effects of increased crime in such areas, 
deterioration of property values and aesthetic concerns; and 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 8-2-26 allows for the adoption of any reasonable 
provisions for the enforcement of the state minimum standard codes and provides for 
inspections of buildings or similar structures to ensure compliance with the state 
minimum standard codes; and 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-13-6 provides for the levy, assessment, and 
collection of occupation taxes on those businesses and practitioners of professions 
and occupations which have location within the corporate limits; and 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-13-5 provides that renting or leasing real 
property to another at a site within a City is an occupation, profession or business; 
and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Newnan recognize the 
inherent dangers of residing in buildings or structures that do not meet the state 
minimum standard codes, and further recognize a lessee’s or tenant’s right to privacy; 
and 

 WHEREAS, landlords, owners, lessors, or agents of landlords, owners, or 
lessors have the duty, under O.C.G.A. § 44-7-13, and such cases as Thompson v. 
Crownover, 259 Ga. 126, 381 S.E.2d 283 (1989), to keep rental premises in repair; 
and 



2 
 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing as required by O.C.G.A. §48-13-6(c) was held 
at the City Council’s regular meeting on the 24th day of September, 2019. 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Newnan have 
determined that protection of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Newnan 
requires that property that is being rented or leased meet the state minimum standard 
codes: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, to accomplish the foregoing, BE IT ORDAINED by the 
Mayor and City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia, and it is hereby ordained by 
the authority of same, Chapter 5, Licenses, and Regulation, of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Newnan, Georgia is hereby amended by adopting a new Article VIII Multi-
family Rental Housing to read as follows: 

 SECTION I. Article VIII: Multifamily Rental Housing  

 Section 5-80.  Definitions 

 As used in this subsection, the following terms shall have the meaning 
respectively ascribed to them as follows: 

 Certified Building Inspector shall mean any person inspecting for compliance 
with the various adopted codes who is a licensed design professional (architect or 
engineer) or holds one of the following certifications from SBCCI (ICC): Property 
Maintenance and Housing Inspector, Housing Rehabilitation Inspector, Building 
Inspector, Building Plan Examiner or Commercial Combination Inspector. 

 Code of Compliance Certificate shall mean a certificate, substantially similar 
to Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein, executed by a Certified 
Building Inspector and stating compliance with those minimum standards described 
in the Inspection Report attached thereto. 

 Inspection Report means a report, substantially similar to the inspection 
report attached to the ordinance and incorporated herein, and referred to on the code 
compliance certificate and describing the minimum requirements for inspection of 
each unit. The inspection report may be modified from time to time by the Chief 
Building Official of the City of Newnan to comply with the adoption, revision or 
amendment of all applicable laws, certifications or standards. 

 Lease shall mean any written or oral agreement which sets forth any and all 

conditions concerning the use and occupancy of multifamily rental dwellings or 
multifamily rental units. 

 Multifamily Rental Dwelling shall mean any multifamily structure, 
multifamily building, or other facility promised and or leased to a residential tenant or 
tenants for use as a home, residence, or sleeping unit. This definition includes, but is 
not limited to multiple family dwellings, multiple family apartment units, boarding 



3 
 

houses, rooming houses, group homes, and flats. 

 Multifamily Rental Unit shall mean any one area, room, structure, flat, 
apartment, or facility of a multifamily rental dwelling that is being leased or rented to 
only one tenant, group of tenants, or family under one lease, or under terms of joint 
and severable liability. 

 Occupancy shall mean all tenants, lessees and persons residing within a 
multifamily rental dwelling or multifamily rental unit. 

 Owner shall mean any person, agent, firm, or corporation having a legal or 
equitable interest in a premises. 

 Owner-Occupied shall mean any part of a structure used as living quarters 
by the owner of said structure where other parts of the structure are used as 
multifamily rental units. Example: Two- family dwelling, owner occupies one ‘flat; 
rooming house, owner occupies one unit. 

 Premises shall mean any lot or piece of land inclusive of the multifamily 
rental dwelling or multifamily rental unit. 

 
 Section 5-81.  Fee and Certificate Required 

 All owners of multifamily rental dwellings or multifamily rental unit(s) 
within the City that receive income for use of four (4) or more such dwellings or units 
and meet the requirements of O.C.G.A. Section 48-13-5 for having a location or office 
within the City (a) shall be subject to an occupation tax as provided in Chapter 6, 
Business, Article I, Occupation Tax, of the Newnan Code of Ordinances and (b) shall 
provide to the City Building Department, prior to June 1, 2020, a Code Compliance 
Certificate covering one hundred percent (100%) of the Multi-Family Rental Units 
within the twelve (12) month period immediately proceeding the date of the 
certification. Said Code Compliance Certificate shall be certified by the Owner that all 
units inspected are in compliance with those standards contained in the Code 
Compliance Certificate and Inspection Report.  

 Upon initial inspection of such dwellings or units, should a Certified 
Building, Inspector determine that further work is necessary to comply with the 
minimum standards set forth herein, an acceptable plan shall be submitted to the 
Chief Building Official of the City of Newnan outlining the time and scope of work 
necessary to bring the units into compliance. If such plan is accepted by the Chief 
Building Official of the City of Newnan as reasonable and justified, an extension may 
be granted for up to one year for completion of repairs and compliance with this 
ordinance. No extension shall be granted if life safety issues are involved and any such 
units shall not be leased until brought into compliance. 

 After submission of the initial Code Compliance Certificate, each owner 
shall submit a Code Compliance Certificate annually, commencing on January 1, 



4 
 

2022 at the time of their Occupational Tax certificate renewal. Such subsequent Code 
Compliance Certificate shall cover at least twenty percent (20%) of the units, provided 
all units shall be inspected, at a minimum, every five years. All units inspected shall 
be listed individually on the Code Compliance Certificate submitted to the City 
Building Department by the Certified Building Inspector. 

 The Certified Building Inspector signing the inspection report and 
performing the inspection shall not be an employee of, otherwise related to, or 
affiliated in any way with any owner, manager, or occupant of the multifamily rental 
dwelling or multifamily rental dwelling unit being inspected.  Furthermore, each owner 
and Certified Building Inspector shall keep a written record of all inspections for each 
unit including the date of the inspection, items inspected and all violations, if any, 
observed for a period of 5 years. Such records shall be presented to the City Building 
Department within ten business days after such request is made in writing to the 
inspector. Failure to provide such records may nullify the Code Compliance Certificate 
for those units. 

 Exemptions. Provided all other required permits, certificates and/or 
permissions are obtained from the city, this section shall not apply to multifamily 
rental dwellings or multifamily rental units for a period of two years following issuance 
of a certificate of occupancy for such dwelling or unit. 

 
 Section 5-82.  Failure to Provide Code Compliance Certificate 

 Failure to provide the Code Compliance Certificate as provided herein shall 
be a violation of this ordinance and is subject to those penalties contained herein and 
in Section 1-14, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Newnan. Further, said failure, 
upon a judicial determination, shall be a condition constituting probable cause, and 
may subject said multifamily rental dwelling or multifamily rental unit(s) to inspection 
by the City Building Official of the City of Newnan at a fee as determined by the City 
Council of the City of Newnan that covers all costs of such inspection by the City. Said 
inspection by the City Building Department, if required, shall be at a sole cost of the 
owner and failure to pay said cost shall result in a lien being placed on the premises 
as provided for collection of taxes. 

 Failure to pay the occupational tax as provided herein shall be a violation of 
the City’s Occupational Tax ordinance and is subject to those penalties set forth in 
Chapter 6, Business, Article I, Occupation Tax, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of Newnan. Nothing contained in this section shall prevent the City from enforcement 
of the State Minimum Standard Codes as provided in Chapter 5 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Newnan, Georgia. 

 Section 5-83.  Penalty for False Certification and False Inspection 

 An Owner, who knowingly participates in furnishing a Code Compliance 
Certificate to the City which contains a false certification that all multifamily rental 
dwellings or multifamily rental units inspected are in compliance with those standards 



5 
 

contained in the Code Compliance Certificate shall be guilty of a misdemeanor for 
each multifamily rental dwelling or multifamily rental unit for which the certification is 
shown to be false shall be subject to citation to Newnan Municipal Court and if found 
guilty may be fined up to $1,000, or imprisoned for up to one year, or any combination 
of these, by the Newnan Municipal Court for each violation. 

 A Certified Building Inspector who knowingly furnishes an Inspection 
Report which contains fraudulent information that a multifamily rental dwelling or 
multifamily rental unit meets the minimum "housing standards of the City as shown 
by the Inspection Report contained in Exhibit “A” of this Ordinance shall be subject to 
citation to Newnan Municipal Court and if found guilty may be fined up to $1,000, or 
imprisoned for up to one year, or any combination of these, by the Newnan Municipal 
Court for each violation.. In addition, the Certified Building Inspector’s right to submit 
Inspection Reports to the City Building Department may be suspended for a stated 

period of time, up to 5 years, by Resolution of the City Council of the City of Newnan. 

 SECTION II. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict or 
inconsistent with this Ordinance hereby are repealed. 
 
 SECTION III. This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 
 
 DONE, RATIFIED and PASSED by the City Council of the City of Newnan, 
Georgia, this the ______ day of ________________________, 2019, in regular session 
 
 
ATTEST:    _________________________________________ 
    L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk   _________________________________________ 
    Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ _________________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
    __________________________________________ 
    Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 

 
 
    __________________________________________ 
    Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
    ________________________________________ 

 Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



6 
 

 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 

CONDITION 
INSPECTION REPORT 

 
Name of the Apartment Community:    

Address:                                                Apt. #         Occupied? Yes     No       

Inspection Date:     

Certified Building Inspectors Name 

(Print):  Unit #:    

 
No 

Minimum Standards for Basic Equipment & 
Facilities 

Units are evaluated per code applicable at build, published 

local/state updates, or industry wide life-safety standards. 

 
PASS 

 
FAIL 

Action Required for Compliance 
 

Identify deficiency & location in unit to 

facilitate repairs. 

1 Address number for unit(s) is posted in plain view:  
a) Street address on complex’s monuments sign  
b) Identify each building by number, letter (or 
description if Office, Clubhouse, Storage, etc.)  
c) Each dwelling unit’s ID (number or letter) must clearly 
visible.  
ALL of the above must be quickly & readily visible, 
without a search struggle.  

   

2 Interior and exterior doors are not ill-fitting; 
frames and hardware in good condition and 
operate properly; privacy locks are provided for 
bathroom(s).  

   

3 Interior floors, walls and ceiling kept in good repair.  
Structurally sound and in sanitary condition 

   

4 Windows, 8% glazing of floor space for light and 
ventilation, 45% shall be operable with screens if no air 
conditioning.  Windows shall be in good repair and 
rodent proof, no open cracks or holes. 

   



7 
 

5 Stairs, landings, balconies, decks and porches are 
maintained in sound condition and good repair; 
interior and exterior railings and handrails are 
properly secured and in good repair. 

   

6 Bathroom(s) have operable bath fan in good condition or 
openable window with window screen attached.  

   

7 Plumbing facilities including kitchen sink, lavatory, tub 
or shower, and water closet(s), are clean and sanitary and 
are in good working order. 

   

8 Water heating equipment is operational, in good 
repair and hot water is supplied to bathroom and 
kitchen fixtures. 

   

9 Operational smoke detectors located on the ceiling or 
wall outside each sleeping area in the immediate vicinity 
of bedrooms; & inside each room used for sleeping 
purposes.  All detectors must have battery backup and 
detectors not hard-wired must be replaced with 10-year 
tamper proof batteries. 

. 

     

10 Electrical in good working order with proper covers, no 
exposed wiring, light fixtures in good working 
order. 

   

11 Heating facilities are in good working order. No gas 
burning appliances are located in bedrooms. 

   

12 Evidence of roaches, insects and rodents, not 
observed in unit or in shared, public or exterior areas: 
(Note: extermination is required prior to re-leasing a 
vacant unit). 

   

13 A safe, continuous and unobstructed path of travel 
shall be provided from any point in the unit or 
structure to the public way.  Means of egress shall 
comply with the International Fire Code. 

   

14 Updated fire extinguishers 2A-10BC or greater with 
current inspection tag are located in the common 
hallways within 75’ of the entrance doors to all units 
on the same floor; or located inside individual units. 

       

15 Units maintained with no excessive trash rubbish or 
stored items.  No excessive damage, abuse, or negligence 
contributing to decline in unit function as designed. 

   

16 No over-occupancy or change in unit configuration to 
increase occupancy. 

   



8 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Code Compliance Certificate 

 
Building Department 
Code Enforcement Division 
City of Newnan, GA 
25 Lagrange Street 
Newnan, GA 30263 
 
Re:  Property Name 
       Address 
      Primary Contact 
 
 
 ______Total Units on Property 
  
 _____  Units Inspected (Refer to attached spread sheet) 
 

17 No charcoal burners, LP gas over nominal 1 lb capacity, 
or other open flame cooking device used on balcony not 
equipped with a sprinkler.  No LP storage tank over 
nominal 1 lb capacity, flammable liquid storage tank, gas 
powered tool or vehicle stored in unit.    

       

18 Every unit not serviced by a sprinkler system is equipped 
with an NSF certified automatic fire suppression device 
located in the vent hood or open area above stove or 
cooking range; beginning November 1, 2020 

     

19 Light for common halls & stairways at least one 60 watt 
incandescent bulb or equivalent per 200 sq. ft. of floor or 
stairs. Light fixture to be “whole”. 

   



9 
 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
The undersigned is a Certified Building Inspector pursuant to City of Newnan Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 5, Buildings and Building Regulation, Article VIII, Multifamily Rental 
Housing, and provides this certification pursuant to such Ordinance. 
 
Those apartment units listed on the Condition Inspection Reports submitted with this 
document have been inspected and found to be in compliance with applicable building 
codes of the City of Newnan currently in effect. For purposes of this Certification, 
compliance with applicable building codes shall be deemed to mean that those units 
inspected meet those certain Minimum Standards for Basic Equipment and Facilities for 
Dwellings as set forth on the Condition Inspection Reports.  Nothing herein imposes any 
liability on the City of Newnan or prevents the City of Newnan from enforcing Georgia 
Minimum Standard Codes as provided by Georgia law and the City of Newnan GA. 
 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Certified and sworn   

This ____ day of ____________     ___ , ________ 

 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Inspector 
 
Name:  ______________________________________ 
 
ICC Registration #:  ________________________ 
 
Certification held:  _________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________ 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    October 8, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   15 Elm Cir, Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 

Purpose:      New owner to ask council for an extension to repair structure located at 
15 Elm Cir, Newnan, Ga 30263 

 
 
Background: Owner: Mary Jean Payne Estate c/o Jeffrey Donald Payne Executor. 

Property just sold to new owner Doug Frost. 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: July 12, 2018.   

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On November 28, 2018 the Building Department conducted an inspection 
of the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10). 

Options: 
1. To approve new owner’s request for an extension. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
February 20, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
March 11, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
 
April 23, 2019 – Public hearing held on this property. 
 
August 27, 2019 – New executor appointed. 45 day resolution deadline given to demolish per 
new executor’s direction.    
    
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 



 
 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:  October 8, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  18 Berry Ave 
 
Prepared and  
Presented by:  Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 

Purpose:      Owner to update council on his intention to repair or demolish the 
structure located at 18 Berry Ave. 

 
Background: Owner: Moten Estate (Dan Moten) 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: December 18, 2018 
 

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES 
 
On December 18, 2018 the Building Department conducted an inspection 
of the premises and found the structure to be unsafe, uninhabitable. The 
structure has been determined to be unsafe as set forth by City 
Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10). 
 

 
Options: 

1. To review the owners request for an extension. 
2. Other direction from council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option1. 
       
 
 
 
 



Previous Discussions 
With Council: 
 
April 19, 2019 – Info only provided to council. 
 
June 18, 2019 – Public hearing was held and Resolution was adopted to repair or demolish 
(inform council of intent) within 30 days.      
 
July 16, 2019 – Owner was given a 90 day resolution deadline to repair or demolish. Owner 
informed council he had decided to sell the property. Deadline expires October 15, 2019.      
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    October 8, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   33 Hardaway St., Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 

Purpose:      Owners to update council of status concerning the dilapidated structure 
located at 33 Hardaway St., Newnan, Ga 30263 

 
 
Background: Owner: Annie Pearl Cook Estate 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: March 1, 2019.  

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On March 4, 2019 the Building Department conducted an inspection of 
the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10). 

Options: 
1. To approve owner’s request for an extension. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
April 19, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
May 7, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
 
June 18, 2019 – Public hearing was held on this property. A 120 day extension was granted. 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:  October 8, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:  121 PINSON ST 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 
Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 

Purpose:      Owner/Contractor to update council on repairs to the structure located at 
121 PINSON ST.  

 
 
Background: Owner: JARVISS BALLARD & MARCUS BEASLEY 
                                    Contractor: Render Godfrey    
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: August 26, 2014 
 

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES 
 
On August 26, 2014 the Building Department conducted an inspection of 
the premises and found the structure to be unsafe, uninhabitable, open 
and vacant.  The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set forth 
by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10). 

Options: 
1. Grant request from owner. 

 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 2. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council: 
            
August 2, 2013 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
August 13, 2013 – Public Hearing was requested. 
 
September 23, 2013 - Public hearing was closed and the resolution was to be continued until  
due to the time restrictions for properties purchased in a tax sale. 
 
February 10, 2015 – 180 day extension granted in order for owner to foreclose on property. 
 
August 21, 2015 – 90 day extension request granted in order for owner to foreclose on property. 



 
September 8, 2015 – No Progress 
 
October 15, 2015 – No Progress 
 
November 10, 2015 – No Progress 
 
December 15, 2015 – No Progress 
 
January 12, 2016 – No Progress 
 
February 9, 2016 – No Progress 
 
March 10, 2016 – No Progress 
. 
. 
. 
. 
. 
. 
February 12, 2019- Interior progress 
 
March 11, 2019 – Interior progress 
 
April 9, 2019 – Interior progress 
 
May 9, 2019- No progress 
 
June 18, 2019- No progress 
 
July 19, 2019- No progress 
 
August 13, 2019- No progress 
 
August 13, 2019 – 60 day extension granted with 30 days to report. 
 
September 10, 2019 – contractor informed council of update on repairs.   
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



     City of Newnan, Georgia – Mayor and Council 

  Date:      October 8, 2019 

 

 

Agenda Item:                              280 West Washington St., 180 W Washington St, 6 Glenn St, 8 Glenn St, 100 

Sprayberry Rd. 

 

Prepared and Presented by: Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 

 

 

Submitted by:    Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 

 

Purpose: To inform Council of the status of 280 West Washington St., 180 w Washington St, 6 Glenn St, 8 

Glenn St, 100 Sprayberry Rd having been before Council in Public Hearings.   

 

 

Background: Date of Status Check:  October 1, 2019 

 

 

 
Property Address 

 

 

Owner 

 

 Original Hearing Original # 

Of Days 

Allowed 

Original Resolution 

Deadline 

 Extensions Updated 

Resolution 

Deadline 

Status 

 

280 West Washington St 

  

Irvin Jones Estate 

  

February 24, 2015 

 

180 Days 

 

August 23, 2015 

  

180 Days 

 

March 23, 

2020 

 

Interior progress 

 

 

 

 

180 West Washington St 

  

 

Render Godfrey 

  

 

September 25, 2017 

 

 

45 days 

 

 

November 9, 2017 

  

 

60 days 

 

 

November 9, 

2019 

 

 

No progress 

 

 

 

 

100 Sprayberry Rd 

 

  

 

Edwin Jean-Pierre 

  

 

August 27, 2019 

 

 

60 days 

 

 

October 28, 2019 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Interior and exterior 

progress. 



 

 

8 Glenn St 

 

  

 

D Free Mgt LLC 

  

 

August 27, 2019 

 

 

60 days 

 

 

November 24, 2019 

    

Exterior and interior 

progress. 

 

 

 

6 Glenn St 

 

  

 

D Free Mgt, LLC 

  

 

August 27, 2019 

 

 

30 days 

 

 

September 27,2019 

  

 

60 days 

 

 

November 

24, 2019 

 

Exterior cleanup. Reno 

plans submitted for 

review. 

           

Options:  1. Accept status reports, no further action is required. 

2.  Other direction from Council. 

 

Funding:  Not Applicable 

 

Recommendation: Staff is requesting Council’s approval for Option  

 

 

Previous Discussions 

With Council:  All have previous history with Council.     





SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Libby Winn 

c/o: Newnan City Council 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 

 

Dear Libby, 

Foundation Christian Church has been invited to bring our Free Ice Cream Truck to Newnan High School’s Homecoming 
Parade Pep Rally at Greenville Street Park on Thursday, October 10th. I would like to request three (3) parking spots on 
Greenville Street adjacent to the Park so that we can park the Ice Cream Truck for the aforementioned event. (4 pm)

Please let me know if you have any questions regarding this request.  

Warm regards, 

Jason Walton 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH PASTOR 

 

Foundation Christian Church 
30-A East Washington St. 
Newnan, GA 30263 
Tel (770) 396-2220 
Jason@FoundationNewnan.com 
www.FoundationNewnan.com 

 

 



REQUEST TO CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 8, 2019 

(Artists and Makers Pop Up Market were approved for Sunday 9/15 and Sunday 10/20) 

Request for Artists and Makers Pop Up Market – Downtown 
Sunday November 17, 2019 and an addition to the October 20th event 

From: Martha Anne Duenckel  

Sent: Monday, September 30, 2019 12:03 PM 

To: Libby Winn  

Subject: Re: Artists and Makers Pop Up Market 

(Emails from Ms. Duenckel) 

Attached is the application request to use the court square on Sunday 11/17 from 12-6 pm plus set up 

and breakdown so 10am to 7pm in total. I'd also like to request use of additional sides of the court 

square. We are needing more space than just the west side. The north and south sides are partially 

being used also. I'd also like to request the use of parking spaces.  On the south side of the square I will 

need six spaces for a truck and trailer with two alpaca for the November 17th event. The Alpaca would 

be brought onto the sidewalk. They will have harnesses and will have someone standing there allowing 

children to pet them and take photos one at a time. I also request an additional 3 spaces for a food truck 

on the North Side for the November market. 

For the October 20 event that is already approved and for the November 17th event, I would like one of 

the vendors to be allowed to bring two turtles that will be under her tent.  She is a vendor but also a 

member of the Georgia Reptile Society. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Martha Anne Duenckel 

 



Form Updated February 8, 2019 / October 12, 2018 
 

 

GUIDELINES FOR USING DOWNTOWN NEWNAN SQUARE OR ANY CITY STREETS 

 

NAME OF AGENCY  

NAME OF PERSON IN CHARGE OF EVENT  

ADDRESS OF PERSON IN CHARGE  

CELL PHONE NUMBER OF PERSON IN CHARGE  

TYPE OF EVENT  

PURPOSE OF EVENT  

DATE OF EVENT  

TIME OF EVENT  
 

CONDITIONS OF PERMIT 

If permit is for any type utilizing streets of the city other than just the square area, a map shall be 

submitted to indicate routes of the event.  If road race, walk or similar event, a fee will be charged based 

on number of police officers required to provide safety for the event; and all events of this type should 

be scheduled to end by 10:00 AM.  If officers are required for other events, a fee will be charged based 

on number of officers requested by agency sponsoring event. 

Applicants for permits for the square area only which require the setting of booths or selling goods 

should be aware that homegrown or handmade goods are preferred and that other goods sold should 

not be in conflict with goods that merchants on the square have for sale, excluding restaurant style 

prepared food items. Personal information from those attending the event should not be solicited.  

Subscription based businesses, home improvement companies, insurance companies, etc., that 

approach those attending the event for solicitation for future services are not allowed.  It is 

recommended that a 10x10 booth space be assigned to each participant with the participants name 

written in chalk at each sidewalk location.  Permanent marking on the square is not allowed.  You must 

provide your own tent, chairs and tables.  If your event requires electricity, it must be requested in 

advance.  If it is used from the light poles, then the cover must be put back on after the event.  If a cover 

is lost the event coordinator and vendor are liable for the cost of replacing the lost cover.  All cords must 

be duct taped down to the sidewalks to prevent accidents. 

GUIDELINES FOR USING THE DOWNTOWN NEWNAN SQUARE OR ANY CITY STREETS – PAGE 2 

Artists and Makers Pop Up Market

Martha Anne Duenckel

30 Hannah Rd. Newnan, GA 30263 

6784628387

11/17/2019

12-6 pm

Artist Market

Downtown event

http://www.ci.newnan.ga.us/


Form Updated February 8, 2019 / October 12, 2018 
 

 

EVENT STAFFING 

The coordinator of the event on the square must remain on site throughout the set up and clean up of 

the event.  The event coordinator must make sure that the square is returned to normal after the event 

is over. 

GARBAGE 

Additional rolling trash cans by the City of Newnan Sanitation Department need to be around the court 

square.  Contact Sanitation Services at 770-253-0327 to coordinate and determine the number of cans 

needed for your event.  We recommend that you cover the permanent cans surrounding the square and 

use the rolling cans.  If the decorative cans are overflowing at the end of the event, they should be 

emptied into the rolling cans.  Cost of Sanitation cans are $10.00 per can during normal business hours 

and $25.00 per can after hours.  (Costs are subject to change) 

PUBLIC NOTICE SIGNAGE 

The coordinator of the event is responsible for obtaining and displaying Special Event Notice signs as 

provided by City staff.  Public notice along/near the event location shall be provided at least 72 hours in 

advance of the event. 

BATHROOMS 

A portable restroom, or more depending on the size of the event, must be provided for the public to 

use.  Downtown shops only allow restroom facilities to be used by paying customers.  Main Street can 

assist with contact information on a Main Street member that provides port-a-potties for a fee.  We 

recommend these be placed on the side of NuLink on West Washington Street. 

PARKING 

Vendors can park on the square to unload, but once unloaded they will need to move their vehicles to a 

city lot.  Parking on the square or in front of stores is prohibited.  This includes on side streets.  Parking is 

for customers and event attendees. 

AGREEMENT 

 

I,______________________, agree to these guidelines for use of the Newnan Square and/or city streets. 

 

SIGNED___________________________ 

 

DATE_____________________________ 

EVENT - 100.00.34.2901 – Event Activity Fees 

Martha Anne Duenckel

9/28/2019



Motion to Enter into Executive Session 
 
I move that we now enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4 and 
pursuant to advice by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing  
 
 
And that we, in open session, adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. §50-14-4, and that 
this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law. 
 
 

Motion to Adopt Resolution after Adjourning Back into Regular Session 
 
I move that we adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating 
that the subject matter of the closed portion of the council meeting was within the 
exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4(b). 
 


	NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 10/08/2019
	READING OF THE MINUTES
	A-Minutes-Regular Meeting 9/24/2019

	BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
	NEW BUSINESS
	B-Agreement/Corp Health Partners-Emp Wellness Program
	C-Agreement-Courtware Solutions-Court Software
	D-Update Jail Agreement/Include Lenn Wood
	E-Ordinance-Hotel Motel Tax
	F-Explore Newnan-Coweta-Articles of Incorporation & Bylaws
	G-Amend Alcohol Ord-Spec Event/Assisted Living Facilities
	H-Amend Ord add new article-Multi Family Rental Housing 

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	I-15 Elm Circle - Extension request
	J-18 Berry Ave - Extension request
	K-33 Hardaway Street - Extension request
	L-121 Pinson Street - Extension request
	M-Status Reports - Various Properties

	VISITORS PETITIONS COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS
	N-White Oak Golden K- Sell Pecans on the Square
	O-Foundation-3 parking spaces-Gville St Park-10/10.19 4PM
	P-Sunday Market-Add date 11/17 - Add space/animals

	MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
	ADJOURNMENT



